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          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I am Thomas White,

          3  Chair of the Economic Development Committee. I just

          4  spoke with Council Member Katz, who is Chairperson

          5  of the Land Use, she will be joining us shortly.

          6  We're going to conduct a hearing which I committed

          7  to having after my visit to Willets Point. I'd like

          8  to remind the ladies and gentlemen in the audience

          9  that we're going to conduct this hearing in a

         10  professional manner, you know, no heckling, no boos

         11  or anything to that nature. And if we are able to do

         12  that, then we'll be able to make some progress.

         13                 So, with that, let me start off by

         14  saying good afternoon. I'd like to thank everyone

         15  for coming this afternoon to learn about and voice

         16  your concerns about the Mayor's current proposal to

         17  redevelop Willets Point in Northern Queens. We will

         18  hear the Administration's representative, EDC

         19  President Robert Lieber, Queens Borough President

         20  Helen Marshall, along with a number of business and

         21  land owners in Willets Point that will be directly

         22  affected by the proposed development.

         23                 We, at the Council, are encouraged by

         24  the City's economic growth, and evidenced by the

         25  $4.4 billion surplus, however, we are equally
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          2  concerned that the City's development not occur at

          3  the expense of every day New Yorkers and small

          4  business owners.

          5                 Today's hearing will provide an

          6  excellent opportunity to hear from all parties

          7  involved and affected by the Willets Point plan.

          8                 The hearing is expected to raise a

          9  number of important questions that will need to be

         10  answered going forward towards the anticipated

         11  public Land Use action.

         12                 At this moment, Mr. Lieber, I will

         13  exercise the courtesy, as the Borough President of

         14  Queens is here; is it okay?

         15                 Okay, will you have your seat and

         16  announce who is seated with you, please?

         17                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you, Councilman

         18  White and fellow Council Members. It's our pleasure

         19  to be here this afternoon to discuss the plan and

         20  topic around the redevelopment of Willets Point. I

         21  wanted to just briefly introduce some of the folks

         22  who are seated here with me this afternoon. To my

         23  left is Bill Walsh who is the Vice President at EDC

         24  and has been one of the point people on this project

         25  for some time, and to my immediate right is Neil
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          2  Kitridge (phonetic), principal at Byer Blender Bell

          3  (phonetic), who has been our design architect

          4  consultants, who has been working with us for some

          5  time in coming up with a plan that we think is

          6  sensible, is responsive to the market and the needs

          7  of the community, and to the right of Neil is Kevin

          8  McCarthy with HDR Associates, who has been doing our

          9  work around a number of the issues associated with

         10  environmental conditions which exist at Willets

         11  Point. So, we are all here available to answer any

         12  questions that you have, either if we can't answer

         13  them today, we'd be happy to follow-up and provide

         14  additional answers.

         15                 I also want to acknowledge Borough

         16  President Marshall, who is here to discuss this as

         17  well, and if she prefers, she can go first, but I'm

         18  happy to go and you can take it from here.

         19                 So, anyway, I think what I would like

         20  to do, if it's okay with you, with your permission,

         21  is I believe you have copies of the presentation,

         22  the slides that we're going to go through here, I

         23  have some prepared remarks that I will go through.

         24  If you have questions again, feel free to stop me or

         25  I'll go through them and answer questions as we go
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          2  from here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Proceed.

          4                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

          5                 For the record, my name is Bob

          6  Lieber. I'm the recent President of the New York

          7  City Economic Development Corporation. I have joined

          8  in this position on February 1st, 2007, and I'm very

          9  excited about the opportunity to be here with you

         10  today and to be a part of this great City and some

         11  of the development initiatives, which are in front

         12  of us. I think when I look at the Willets Point

         13  project, it does, if you will, embody many of the

         14  elements which I think are so important in terms of

         15  responsible development that the City is

         16  undertaking, and I want to talk about some of the

         17  components of that with you here today.

         18                 I wasn't here then, but as I

         19  understand it, the Willets Point Peninsula began the

         20  last century in many respects as a garbage dump

         21  where over 100 railroad cars of garbage were dumped

         22  each day and burned. And as time has passed, much of

         23  this former dump site has been transformed into a

         24  number of great assets for New York City, the

         25  Flushing Meadows Corona Park, the new USTA, I guess
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          2  it's not so new anymore, but the new USTA Tennis

          3  Center, the Flushing Bay Waterfront, back in the

          4  early sixties Shea Stadium and now the recent,

          5  beginning of the construction of CitiField. And what

          6  we have left as a part of that redevelopment is the

          7  area, the 62 acres or so, that's known as Willets

          8  Point.

          9                 And when we look at the development

         10  that's taken place and we look at some of the

         11  characteristics of Willets Point and the whole area,

         12  looking at the amenities, clearly one of the major

         13  aspects we have here is the transportation

         14  infrastructure that is unparalleled by both roadway

         15  transportation and mass transit, with the LIRR, the

         16  number 7 train and then numerous highways

         17  intersecting. We also have the development now of

         18  two very vibrant thriving communities, and in

         19  between we have the 62 acres that kind of time has

         20  passed by here. And we think that this is a

         21  tremendous opportunity to transform the area into a

         22  vital new asset for Queens in particular and New

         23  York City as a whole, and we look to do this in a

         24  way, again, part of what the EDC's mission is, is

         25  to, you know, to add jobs and grow the economy of
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          2  this City and that's the approach we want to take

          3  here today, and we think this is one of the last

          4  great sites available for this kind of a development

          5  initiative.

          6                 Talking a little bit about this, I

          7  don't know if you can see these pictures here, but

          8  the area today, and I think we need to look at the

          9  existing conditions for part of the site, and, you

         10  know, as I mentioned, historically coal ash

         11  deposits, there's widespread contamination in the

         12  ground with open petroleum spills. There's also

         13  combined with this, to make this a difficult

         14  location, there's a high watertable, which has the

         15  effect of spreading contamination when water levels

         16  rise. We're also within a 100 year flood plane. For

         17  years this has been the site of a number of

         18  incidents of illegal dumping, and there is no

         19  sanitary sewer system which is in place here today.

         20                 So, what happens is any waste that's

         21  produced here, any contamination leaches into the

         22  ground, and that's a big issue when you're looking

         23  at trying to create sustainable development going

         24  forward.

         25                 So, we've talked about it a little
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          2  bit, just adding sewers, if you will, which would be

          3  one topic that's been presented to us as an idea,

          4  isn't really going to help the redevelopment, given

          5  the widespread level of contamination which is a

          6  preexisting condition on the site.

          7                 So, when we look at it, there are a

          8  number of components that make this an appropriate

          9  time and an appropriate initiative. We have

         10  widespread environmental contamination already. The

         11  high watertable which exists here has the effect of

         12  spreading the contamination from site-to-site and

         13  off-site, which realistically if you want to clean

         14  this up you've got to clean up the entire sites so

         15  that you can get past this kind of contamination

         16  issue on adjacent sites and in the community.

         17                 And the high watertable, combined

         18  with the 100 year flood plane, raises the insurance

         19  costs, and discourages high-quality development of

         20  any kind in the area. So, we believe it requires

         21  really a wholesale remediation effort to make this a

         22  viable redevelopment site.

         23                 The entire, to do this, again, we

         24  believe that the entire site needs to be cleaned, it

         25  needs to all be cleaned at once so that we can
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          2  contain and remediate the site in the most

          3  environmentally appropriate way, and to do so, we

          4  believe, and my consultants are here to talk more

          5  about this, that the, if you will, the existing

          6  grade of the site itself needs to be raised four to

          7  five feet overall so that you can lift the

          8  development out of the confines of the existing

          9  flood plane.

         10                 As we look at the redevelopment

         11  opportunity here, once the grade is higher and we're

         12  able to build a new infrastructure on stabilized

         13  ground and stabilized soil, and by surcharging the

         14  area or creating piles to make sure that the whole

         15  integrated system functions properly.

         16                 And when we look at it, we look at

         17  the magnitude and the enormity of the task that's in

         18  front of us, and think about the idea of doing it

         19  piecemeal or bite size, one way or the other, but

         20  it's the recommendation of the consultants in the

         21  community that we've been working with that if we're

         22  going to do this, let's do it right. Let's do it

         23  once, and let's do it in a way that it's sustainable

         24  and we can do so in a way that is respectful and

         25  responsible to the existing employers and land
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          2  owners on the site, as well as bills for the future

          3  as we try and remediate the site for new businesses

          4  that will come here for people who live here as

          5  well.

          6                 So, Bill, I think you've gone through

          7  a couple more of the, you know, some of the other,

          8  what we'll call the existing conditions with the

          9  illegal dumping and unsafe structures, which exist

         10  in the area.

         11                 When we look at Willets Point itself,

         12  you know, it's easy to use adjectives that you can

         13  highlight, or can be alarming as a dump or different

         14  sites that don't really, frankly, I don't think

         15  really capture that business or those businesses

         16  which exist in Willets Point, and as we've done our

         17  canvasing and in working with the community and

         18  talking to owners here, this is actually kind of a

         19  tale of two different parts of the community, if you

         20  will, both with the employer network, as well as

         21  with the owner occupiers here.

         22                 There are some very significant and

         23  very important businesses to the City and the

         24  citizens of New York that occupy and own land in

         25  Willets Point, and it's very important for us to
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          2  come up with a strategy that is going to retain

          3  those businesses, while we continue to redevelop the

          4  site.

          5                 As I mentioned, we have over 250

          6  businesses on just over, just a little over 60

          7  acres, 11 businesses owning 21 acres, so those

          8  businesses collectively own about 35 percent of land

          9  in Willets Point, and the remaining businesses which

         10  are by and large the automobile-related services

         11  businesses occupy about 40 acres, largely those

         12  businesses are here as tenants and not as land

         13  owners. I say largely because you can't talk in

         14  absolutes here, but again, a very important mix of

         15  businesses that employ a lot of people and a very

         16  important mix of businesses that have real

         17  businesses that have been here for a long time, that

         18  have been here for many generations, and, frankly,

         19  these businesses also represent a large part of

         20  business that's getting done here in New York, in

         21  the construction trades and material supply

         22  businesses. These are important businesses, not only

         23  to Willets Point, but also important businesses to

         24  New York City overall. So, it's important that we

         25  recognize that and deal with it, and we want to make
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          2  sure that to every extent that we possibly can that

          3  we work with these, all these businesses, including

          4  the land owners in a way that is fair and

          5  transparent. It's critical to the success, both for

          6  us and for them, that we come up with a way to try

          7  and address this in a way that provides certainty

          8  and provides transparency about what we're trying to

          9  do.

         10                 I'll talk a little bit more about

         11  that as we go forward here. But based on the surveys

         12  that we've been able to do, not particularly formal

         13  surveys but our informal surveys and canvases that

         14  we've been able to do, employee counts, and et

         15  cetera, we estimate there are about 1,300 workers in

         16  Willets Point. Hard to tell for sure, but we think

         17  about 30 percent of these employees may be working,

         18  quote, off the books or in a cash economy. In many

         19  respects the wages in this area are, particularly in

         20  the auto-related workers are depressed, with many of

         21  the employees earning less than 40 percent of what

         22  the average salary is for auto workers elsewhere in

         23  the City. So, you know, the other side of the

         24  business, if you will.

         25                 And I think important to note here is
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          2  this, as I've come to learn in the past four months,

          3  this isn't necessarily a particularly new idea, and

          4  it's been talked about for different administrations

          5  over different periods, but the plan that we are

          6  prepared to present, or we are preparing to you

          7  today, has gotten to where it is through a very

          8  close, collaborative and consultative process, with

          9  many different stakeholders from the different

         10  surrounding communities, and the first step

         11  originated from the Flushing development framework

         12  which was a set of recommendations about how we can

         13  enhance Flushing's role as a regional economic

         14  center. This was an organized, community-based

         15  planning process that involved many, many different

         16  constituents, including elected officials, civic

         17  groups, city agencies, business leaders and the

         18  community board. This wasn't, quote, just the City's

         19  idea. This came from the community. And as we have

         20  come to learn, the overwhelming consensus among this

         21  group is that the time is right for a change at

         22  Willets Point, and coming up with ideas for

         23  redevelopment was listed as a top priority within

         24  this Flushing framework project.

         25                 As we started, there were several
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          2  goals that were agreed upon that essentially

          3  established the guiding principles for the

          4  redevelopment. We, first of all, wanted to improve

          5  the environmental quality and reflect the sensitive

          6  nature of the waterfront setting where Willets Point

          7  is located, we wanted to create a large scale

          8  destination to bring more people to Flushing and

          9  more business, be a source of more jobs, as well as

         10  better jobs within the area. Again that's really my

         11  job, is to think about this day in and day out, and

         12  look for different ways that we can. Part of the

         13  Mayor's Initiative is to diversity the economy by

         14  both industry, as well as by borough, and what we're

         15  trying to do here is enhance the economic growth,

         16  both in Flushing and in neighboring Corona.

         17                 Another part of the broader

         18  initiative here is to create adjacent recreational

         19  and sporting facilities to accommodate people who

         20  live in the area and new people that we would hope

         21  come and choose to live at Willets Point.

         22                 So, these goals form the foundation

         23  of the proposed redevelopment plans that we have.

         24  The Downtown Flushing Task Force itself was created

         25  about five years ago. We've gone through a brief
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          2  time line here back in 2002 through 2004, 2005,

          3  2006, 2007, so there's been really a ton of work

          4  that's been done with the different constituents,

          5  and, again, I'd like to acknowledge particularly

          6  Borough President Marshall who has been so

          7  instrumental in working with us and helped form an

          8  advisory committee with the elected officials and

          9  community boards that we meet with quarterly to get

         10  feedback on the redevelopment plans for Willets

         11  Point.

         12                 The feedback has been critical in

         13  terms of developing the plans that we have here

         14  today. But the plans about what you're going to do

         15  is nice. What is also important is how are you going

         16  to get it done? And another one of the topics that

         17  I've become familiar with is, you know, this is a

         18  difficult site, you know, we have watertable issues

         19  that I mentioned before, but we also have

         20  environmental issues, soil conditions and

         21  significant infrastructure needs, and this is going

         22  to cost money to try and address.

         23                 So, we've been holding a number of

         24  workshops with both City and State agencies to make

         25  sure that the plans that we've developed are
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          2  feasible, that they're financeable, and that we can

          3  get this done. Because we don't want to be in a

          4  position where we decide we have a really great plan

          5  that's not particularly well thought out, and we

          6  relocate a number of businesses and in fact decide

          7  that we don't want to go forward with the

          8  redevelopment plan.

          9                 So, that's a failure and that's what

         10  we want to avoid. So, we've tried to be very

         11  thoughtful about balancing the feedback we receive

         12  from the market, as well as balancing the needs that

         13  we get from our consultants and our experts about

         14  the feasibility of trying to build out here.

         15                 I would also say that we have gone

         16  out into the marketplace, not once, but twice, with

         17  some of the most experienced developers of large

         18  scale urban mixed use projects, not only here in New

         19  York City in the Tristate area, but also really from

         20  a more national basis, to look at the feasibility

         21  from the market's perspective about building the

         22  kind of density that we're talking about on this

         23  site, and what the current market conditions and the

         24  perception and the ability to get something like

         25  this done, and I would say that we've been very
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          2  pleased, and not surprised, but very, very pleased

          3  that we have gotten the kind of response and the

          4  kind of enthusiasm from these different developer

          5  groups. And these developers aren't just sole

          6  developers, they're often already teamed up with

          7  others that can execute what's going to be a retail,

          8  as well as a multi-family and office strategy here.

          9                 So, we're very confident that we can

         10  succeed in transforming in Willets Point from an

         11  environmental hazard into really what is one of New

         12  York's next great neighborhood communities.

         13                 So that, just to try to give you a

         14  sense, five years, a lot of interaction with local

         15  communities, a lot of interaction with elected

         16  officials and community interests, as many different

         17  stakeholders as we can to help us understand the

         18  myriad of opportunities which exists for the site,

         19  as well as what the community wants to see, what the

         20  needs and the concerns of the community are going to

         21  be.

         22                 And now we're into the next critical

         23  phase of the public engagement, and the

         24  environmental review is now officially begun, on May

         25  1st, the Mayor announced that the Flushing branch of
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          2  the Queens Public Library, that the public scoping

          3  had begun for the redevelopment of Willets Point.

          4  The Environmental Impact Statement, the EIS, will

          5  take a look at the illustrative case for the

          6  redevelopment and it provide a very close

          7  examination of the plan for the redevelopment.

          8                 The project will require ULURP

          9  approvals for a number of the changes in Land Use.

         10  This is necessary to implement the program which has

         11  been described in the EIS. Components of that

         12  include rezoning the sites 2C4-4, a special district

         13  from its current M3-1 zoning. We want to create an

         14  urban renewal plan and as a part of the integrated

         15  and really overall strategic plan, important is that

         16  we need to demap and remap streets which exist in

         17  the site so that we can address all the needs of the

         18  future community here.

         19                 I think importantly to note here

         20  today, while we have been to the market with the

         21  developers a couple of times to continue to confirm

         22  their enthusiasm about the assumptions and what we

         23  think can be built here, it's important to note that

         24  no developer will be selected for this project until

         25  after ULURP. So, there is no developer that's been
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          2  designated at all. They all understand that, but we

          3  want to go through the ULURP process here and then

          4  go out to the market afterwards, so that we have the

          5  benefit of timing to get that done.

          6                 And it's important for the City, we

          7  think, to fully develop its own plans for the site,

          8  and then we think we can count on the developers --

          9  let me rephrase "count on," that we can work with

         10  developers to implement the vision, that's approved

         11  through the public review process.

         12                 Just anecdotally, it's not in my

         13  notes, but I have 25 years in the private sector in

         14  the real estate industry and I can tell you there

         15  are not a lot of opportunities like this in the

         16  country where you can get this much enthusiasm from

         17  developers and we expect will have a very, very

         18  competitive process and one that will be able to

         19  really achieve the goals that we have ascertained

         20  through the Land Use Review Project. So, we're very

         21  excited about the level of enthusiasm so far, and

         22  our ability to deliver on this.

         23                 As I mentioned, the final development

         24  program will be decided after we go through the

         25  ULURP and the final negotiations between the City
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          2  and the developer, team of developers, but what

          3  we're going to talk about is what we call the

          4  maximum build-out scenario, which we think is

          5  illustrative for the program redevelopment, and

          6  this, if you will, is the envelope by which any

          7  future project will need to fit.

          8                 So, when we look at it today in its

          9  biggest scale, we have 1.7 million square feet of

         10  retail, our feedback and our observations of the

         11  market indicate that the Queens area is dramatically

         12  underserved by retail, and important to our mission,

         13  a new retail destination at Willets Point will

         14  reduce the loss of tax revenues associated with

         15  people migrating or traveling out to Long Island, to

         16  Westchester or even to New Jersey to do their

         17  shopping.

         18                 We also think this is a unique

         19  opportunity for the City to leverage the significant

         20  investment which is taking place in the adjacent

         21  CitiField, and we think we can work harmoniously

         22  with CitiField to attract additional revenues from

         23  those customers that now don't spend any money

         24  outside of the stadium. They just go, they go to the

         25  game and they leave, and we think we can create a
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          2  big revenue opportunity here for the local community

          3  by capturing some of the business of the 50 some odd

          4  thousand people who will come to see the Mets play

          5  94 games a year.

          6                 We have also as a part of the plan

          7  5,500 units of mixed income housing. You know, in

          8  the Mayor's Plan new housing is important. The goal

          9  of our PlaNYC 2030, we haven't determined what the

         10  final mix is going to be, but a significant

         11  percentage of the units will be available to low-

         12  and middle-income residents. Building this kind of

         13  density requires additional amenities and support,

         14  and we expect that there will be a new school and

         15  other community uses, so Parks will be a part of

         16  this project.

         17                 Also in the plan today is the

         18  opportunity to construct the first convention center

         19  for the City which will be located outside

         20  Manhattan. We think that there is a vibrant need for

         21  other trade shows and other convention markets to

         22  use other sites than that which is just located

         23  presently at the Javits Center.

         24                 We also, again, identified the

         25  location attributes and benefits of the site's
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          2  proximity to the transportation and the airports

          3  makes it an ideal site for a new hotel that would

          4  live, again, with that convention center. You've got

          5  tremendous traffic opportunities with the highway

          6  infrastructure and then certainly with the airports,

          7  particularly at LaGuardia right by, so we think this

          8  could be a premiere airport hotel for the visitors,

          9  and as well as being able to accommodate guests for

         10  a mid-sized convention center.

         11                 We also believe that there is the

         12  potential for office space use here. We have

         13  described some 500,000 square feet of new office

         14  space, and as a part of the Flushing framework, we

         15  also think there is a great opportunity to create a

         16  new connection to Flushing, if you will, that the

         17  City has started the planning process to try and

         18  link College Point Boulevard in Flushing with the

         19  new development at Willets Point currently

         20  contemplated with the new pedestrian bridge.

         21                 So, this isn't supposed to be an

         22  oasis or island unto its own, we want to reconnect

         23  Willets Point with Flushing and with Corona, as

         24  well. I think when we look at the bridge itself,

         25  it's an important symbol of the commitment that the
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          2  community faces, both outwards and brings new

          3  opportunity for Flushing and Corona, as I mentioned.

          4                 We have some current photos and some

          5  renderings just to present to you, kind of the

          6  transformative opportunity which we think exists

          7  here, looking at 126, if you will, the current

          8  conditions, and then as we project new shops and

          9  restaurants and cafes which line 126th Street across

         10  from CitiField, the residential and office towers

         11  would be above the retail. And I also want to point

         12  out to you when you look at the retail on the right,

         13  you'll see that there are several steps up, and part

         14  of that is reflecting the need to get above the

         15  groundwater and the flood plane level there.

         16                 We have a rendering and the picture

         17  between Willets Point Boulevard both before and

         18  after. I don't know how this happens, but it seems

         19  like every time I'm there, the puddle is always

         20  there, even if it hasn't rained for a month. I don't

         21  know where that comes from, but, again, part of the

         22  conditions we want to improve.

         23                 Today where there are now scrap

         24  yards, could be a new park for residents and

         25  visitors along with schools and community use and a
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          2  much more green environment. Looking at some of the

          3  natural areas, which exist as well, you know, some

          4  of the obstacles, the block access to the

          5  waterfront, and create certainly a sense of

          6  isolation. We hope to address this by restoring the

          7  natural areas and improve that connection between

          8  the environment and create more recreational

          9  opportunities for Queens' residents.

         10                 A depiction between the next great

         11  neighborhood before and after. Here is what you see

         12  when you see the site today, including the

         13  construction that's underway for the new CitiField,

         14  and then the rendering that we have, and our current

         15  conceptualized plan around the build out.

         16                 Important certainly to this is an

         17  understanding of why would you do this. What are the

         18  advantages to the community here? We think this is

         19  an opportunity really in the new PlaNYC

         20  sustainability to really create the first green

         21  environment, the whole green new mixed use

         22  development. Cleaning the environment is absolutely

         23  critical here, create more affordable housing units,

         24  again, provide thousands of new jobs, with a heavy

         25  emphasis on local hiring, and MWBE participation. We
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          2  also feel it's a unique opportunity to develop

          3  high-quality retail, as well as entertainment, to

          4  compliment that retail and other uses in the area, I

          5  mentioned building new parks and playgrounds, as

          6  well as capture on some of the growth which is

          7  already taking place in Flushing and Corona and spur

          8  additional economic growth.

          9                 We have great existing sports

         10  facilities in the neighborhood, we want to try and

         11  look at ways to leverage those areas and create more

         12  of a destination area for people who can stay, and

         13  as I mentioned, become New York City's first green

         14  community.

         15                 So, we think there are enormous

         16  benefits for the surrounding community and the

         17  entire City, and I think that also I just want to

         18  make the point here, is that we don't want to do

         19  that at the expense of the existing land owners and

         20  the tenants who are here.

         21                 It's important for us to work with

         22  these folks and come up with a plan, so that they

         23  can retain the businesses, so they can have the

         24  opportunity to grow their businesses, and try and

         25  minimize the dislocation associated with trying to
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          2  run these businesses as much as we possibly can.

          3                 So, this isn't all about just

          4  redeveloping 60 acres that has been largely

          5  neglected, it's about creating a new community,

          6  creating new jobs, creating a green community, as

          7  well as addressing the needs of the existing land

          8  owners and employees who are in the community,

          9  because that's an important part of making this all

         10  work.

         11                 Talked a little bit about the

         12  sustainable growth plan, a part of PlaNYC. We think

         13  we've already seen some interest from people outside

         14  the City. We think this is a great opportunity and

         15  really become an international model for what I'll

         16  call environmental stewardship.

         17                 This is clearly where a lot of growth

         18  is going to take place in New York City and other

         19  major urban markets around the United States, and

         20  internationally is addressing some of those land

         21  areas that have been neglected in trying to come up

         22  with ways that you can remediate and redevelop this

         23  into very productive uses.

         24                 And, you know, it's exactly this kind

         25  of project that supports the Mayor's PlaNYC effort,
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          2  we have affordable housing, this is a part of this

          3  ten minutes walk between any park in transit and

          4  cleaning up the environment.

          5                 So, we're working very hard on the

          6  specific details and guidelines for sustainability

          7  at the site which the developers will be required to

          8  follow to ensure execution on the commitment for

          9  this kind of vision, and we will hopefully be in a

         10  position to announce the details about that later

         11  this year.

         12                 Talking a little bit about some of

         13  the economic impacts associated with the

         14  redevelopment itself, we project over 6,000 new

         15  permanent jobs, over 20,000 construction jobs, and

         16  more than $5 billion economic impact on New York

         17  City alone over a 30-year period. And I mentioned

         18  the focus that we plan to bring and continue to

         19  bring on MWBE participation and local hiring, and

         20  working very closely with the task force which is

         21  led by the Borough President.

         22                 We've shown a little bit of a mix of

         23  the different jobs between dining and entertainment,

         24  hotel and hospitality, office workers, as well as

         25  retail, and what we're trying to do here is, in a

                                                            31

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  mixed use development is to make sure that the

          3  benefits of this project are shared with the

          4  community and the owners in the area, and we want to

          5  capitalize on addressing and channeling these

          6  opportunities in a way that we can all be proud of

          7  how we do that.

          8                 Business assistance in the workforce

          9  development. I've been on a couple of different

         10  boards on workforce development. We had a meeting

         11  again this morning. The Business Assistance and

         12  Workforce Development Initiative here is key to

         13  being able to do this and maintain the tax base of

         14  jobs that we have. We're very cognizant this is a

         15  community that already exists at Willets Point, one

         16  that's critical to the business in New York City and

         17  provides the jobs and services that we all benefit

         18  from. So, we are committed to working with these

         19  businesses in a fair and open manner, but to help

         20  them relocate to other locations where businesses

         21  continue to not only survive but thrive going

         22  forward, and it's a critical part of our

         23  redevelopment effort.

         24                 We don't want to lose jobs outside of

         25  New York City. These jobs play a very important role
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          2  in our economy, and even with some of the unskilled

          3  workers, they have families and they have their own

          4  needs, and we want to work closely with our

          5  colleagues in SBS or Small Business Services and

          6  other community groups to make sure they have the

          7  appropriate training and skills that are going to

          8  enable them to compete effectively for higher paying

          9  jobs as we go forward here.

         10                 We have begun the dialogue with the

         11  business owners. To be fair, this is what I will

         12  call in the early stages. The decision was made, I

         13  mean this is no secret what we've been doing for the

         14  last five years around the redevelopment of Willets

         15  Point, but again, coming from the private sector,

         16  I'm extremely cognizant of the needs, how you run a

         17  business, and making decisions day in and day out

         18  about where we're going to invest capital and where

         19  we're going to locate are important to what you're

         20  trying to do, and uncertainty about what you're

         21  doing is incredibly disruptive to trying to run and

         22  to grow businesses.

         23                 So, we've been very open about what

         24  we've been doing for the past five years, but until

         25  we really had a plan that we thought was not only
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          2  supported and reinforced by market, but also had

          3  been developed in conjunction with our consultants

          4  and other experts in the area, so we knew was

          5  actually feasible from a construction point of view,

          6  until we were confident that those two factors were

          7  at play here, we have not been aggressive in going

          8  out to the local businesses and land owners with the

          9  plan.

         10                 That began on the 1st with the

         11  announcement, and that is, one of my top focuses

         12  here is we move forward here as to be meeting with

         13  the land owners. We've had, you know, a couple of

         14  informal meetings. We've had one formal meeting with

         15  the large group of the land owners and over the next

         16  two to three weeks, Bill, we have many one-on-one

         17  meetings scheduled with each of these land owners.

         18                 What I have told the land owners is

         19  that we are not here to tell you what we're going to

         20  do. We are here to listen to what it is that you

         21  need. And we want to be responsive to those items

         22  that you need. It doesn't mean we have all the

         23  things that you want, but we want to be clear that

         24  we want to listen to what your needs are as a

         25  business, your location requirements, where your
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          2  customers are, where your employees are, what's

          3  important around transportation and access. And so,

          4  we want to hopefully develop a plan for each of

          5  these major -- for each of these land owners that

          6  addresses their specific needs.

          7                 Again, as we sit here today, we

          8  believe that in order to do this right we need to

          9  clear the entire site. That is a lot of disruption

         10  to a lot of businesses here, but we want to do this

         11  as expeditiously as we can, and the Mayor said it at

         12  the announcement, we want to be fair in the

         13  treatment to these businesses. Frankly, we feel, if

         14  I would look at it if I were running a business, I

         15  would like to know with as much certainty as soon as

         16  I can what the probable outcomes are going to be so

         17  that I can adjust my business needs accordingly, and

         18  certainly from the City's perspective it's important

         19  to try and move this as expeditiously as we can so

         20  that we can make sure we don't miss the market

         21  opportunity which exists today.

         22                 So, again, we're just beginning today

         23  the real very active dialogue with the land owners,

         24  and we think we've begun to have an open dialogue

         25  and open conversation with them.
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          2                 This is not going to be easy. There

          3  are a lot of complicated issues about the uses and

          4  where we're going to locate them. But I've been

          5  pleased so far that there seems to be a relatively

          6  open mind about trying to reach a reasonable

          7  conclusion to this.

          8                 We'll be releasing more details about

          9  this as we go through the summer, and I'm sure

         10  you'll have questions about my testimony, but let me

         11  just identify what I think will be some of the

         12  typical relocation benefits that we're talking

         13  about.

         14                 First would be the one-on-one

         15  relocation assistance. We will retain the best

         16  industrial real estate experts to help us do the

         17  identification of appropriate sites and help us with

         18  evaluation. We want to make sure the property owners

         19  receive fair value for both the land that they own,

         20  as well as the fixtures that are in the improvements

         21  on these assets. We think there are a number of

         22  different incentives within the City that can add to

         23  these relocation opportunities, including the IBZ

         24  tax credits, empire zone tax credits, IDA benefits,

         25  assistance with purchasing new equipment. And I'll
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          2  just note that I know at least one case, probably

          3  more, that the IDA, which is a part of the New York

          4  City Economic Development Corporation, was

          5  successful in bringing one of the tenants and one of

          6  the major land owners to Willets Point many years

          7  ago, and we have provided tax exempt financing to

          8  the company to help it grow, and we're looking at

          9  other areas to try and help them grow their

         10  businesses, as well.

         11                 So, I want to make sure the message

         12  comes across that we feel a real responsibility to

         13  these landowners and businesses as well, because we

         14  all have a vested stake in making sure they not only

         15  survive, but they prosper and succeed as we go

         16  forward.

         17                 I talked a little bit about the

         18  workforce assistance or business assistance and

         19  workforce development. We want to make sure that we

         20  can create, if you will, a safety net for the

         21  workforce in Willets Point, in case they are unable

         22  to relocate with their current employer, you know,

         23  today is a particularly good employment market with

         24  unemployment in the City, you know, less than five

         25  percent, maybe 4.5, 4.6 percent unemployment, and we
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          2  have still had, with our colleagues at SBS, what I

          3  think is pretty significant success in finding jobs

          4  for the lower skilled workforce. The statistics I

          5  saw at the Workforce Board Meeting I was at this

          6  morning is SBS has placed more than 4,000 jobs each

          7  quarter from this type of community. So, we take

          8  this commitment seriously. We're working closely

          9  with our colleagues at SBS so that we can provide

         10  that safety net for some of the employees who may

         11  not be able to relocate with current employers.

         12                 I talked about relocating jobs,

         13  displaced workers, retraining for better

         14  opportunities, and you know, bottom line is trying

         15  to minimize the impact of the displacement

         16  associated with this. Job training, ESL and GED

         17  services, immigration and social services are all

         18  components of how we can address the needs of some

         19  of the, particularly the immigrant and the lesser

         20  skilled workers in the area.

         21                 Again, more of this detail will come

         22  to you around these programs prior to and in

         23  consideration of the project as we move through the

         24  ULURP process.

         25                 We've presented here a time line
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          2  starting today that works through when we think in

          3  2009, 2010, that will have the site ready for

          4  redevelopment and construction. This is an ambitious

          5  schedule but one that we think is achieveable as

          6  presented here, and we're committed to doing

          7  everything we can to try and stay on this time line.

          8                 I'll summarize just to say we think

          9  that the redevelopment of Willets Point can be an

         10  enormous win/win for the City - a win/win for the

         11  local community, in terms of increasing jobs, and

         12  capturing the momentum in the economy there, and

         13  then a win/win if we can be successful in relocating

         14  the existing businesses here, as well. It's a huge,

         15  we think we can create a huge economic engine,

         16  creating thousands of quality jobs, expand the

         17  market in both Flushing and Corona, and, you know,

         18  act as a real role model nationally for creating a

         19  sustainable and livable community out of a currently

         20  compromised location or site.

         21                 There are a lot of critical goals we

         22  must meet, a lot of things we need to meet these

         23  goals, but this is absolutely a top priority for us.

         24  We think this is one that has great support locally

         25  in the community, we think has great support by the
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          2  market in terms of it's very enthusiastic about

          3  participating here and we hope that we can do this

          4  in a way that is responsible and respectful to all

          5  the parties that are involved.

          6                 So, my voice is going hoarse, but

          7  that's the end of my prepared remarks, and I would

          8  be happy to answer any questions or refer any of our

          9  questions to any of our colleagues as well, Council

         10  Member.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         12  much. I would like to acknowledge the presence of my

         13  colleagues, Council Member Leroy Comrie, Dan

         14  Garodnick, Tony Avella, John Liu, David Weprin, my

         15  Co-chair Melinda Katz, Hiram Monserrate, Helen

         16  Sears, Council Member Stewart, Council Member

         17  Seabrook, and Alan Gerson. I will now turn it over

         18  to the Co-Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you want to ask

         20  any questions first? It's up to you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's up to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: No, I would like

         24  to ask my questions.

         25                 I've heard a lot about what was
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          2  planned, and I understand that no developer has been

          3  picked as of yet; is that correct?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: When do you think

          6  that developer will be picked?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: We believe that we will

          8  go out with an RFP to the developer once we've gone

          9  through the ULURP process.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What do you think

         11  the cost of this project will be in terms of

         12  dollars?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: It will be a lot.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: A lot doesn't help

         15  us.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: It's a lot. This is a big

         17  project. You know, you've got 60 acres of land to

         18  develop with very large density of what we're going

         19  to do.

         20                 You know, it's not unrealistic to

         21  think that this would be a project that is north of

         22  $3 billion.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: North of $3

         24  billion.

         25                 MR. LIEBER: And that's in excess of
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          2  $3 billion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I like how you put

          4  that, "north of." Okay, all right thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Council Member Katz.

          7                 MR. LIEBER: I do think excess of 3

          8  billion is a lot of money, too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We all do. If you

         10  don't, there's a problem, right?

         11                 I want to first apologize for being a

         12  little tardy, but I know that my Co-Chair Tom White

         13  handled the beginning of it just fine, so I want to

         14  thank him for all of the work that he does as Chair

         15  of the Economic Development Committee, and welcome

         16  you, Mr. Lieber, to the Chambers of the City

         17  Council.

         18                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have several

         20  questions. If I can, what I'd like to do is sort of

         21  go through them quickly, and hopefully get a quick

         22  response, as well. But I will start by saying that I

         23  have been a Queens legislator on and off for 13

         24  years, and the only time I was not a legislator in

         25  those 13 years is when I had the privilege of
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          2  working for Borough President Shulman, and was part

          3  of all of the work that she did for Willets Point at

          4  that time and worked with the industry that was

          5  there, and with the City to try to make it a better

          6  place. So, the experience I have is somewhat good

          7  when it comes to Willets Point.

          8                 I have several questions, though, as

          9  also Chair of the Land Use Committee. The first one

         10  would be, why are you going through ULURP first?

         11                 MR. LIEBER: Why are we going through

         12  the ULURP first, as opposed to the RFP?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: As opposed to how

         14  EDC, in my experience, as far as being Chair of the

         15  Land Use Committee, most often, or at least half the

         16  time at least, we go through the process of picking

         17  a developer, then it goes to the ULURP process after

         18  that has been done.

         19                 MR. LIEBER: You asked for a short

         20  answer. I think that there are two answers I would

         21  give, and I'll try and be brief. One is I think that

         22  it's important that this be a City Plan that we can

         23  work and negotiate with the local constituents that

         24  we're involved with. The second part that I would

         25  say, and this is more of my personal view, is I
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          2  think when you look at projects of this kind of

          3  magnitude and this kind of size and that north of $3

          4  billion is an example, it's important to know that

          5  you can get these things done. And one of the

          6  concerns that I've heard is the idea that this would

          7  go, we would go through this and then we wouldn't

          8  get it done. And I think that the extent that we can

          9  have something we can deliver to the market that

         10  they can bid on effectively and that we can hold to

         11  very high performance standards in terms of how

         12  they're going to execute is critical to executing a

         13  project of this kind of scale.

         14                 So, two parts; one is, I think it's

         15  important for the City to have this as their plan

         16  and to be able to have the interaction with the

         17  local community, and the second part is I believe

         18  it's a better way to do it from a market

         19  perspective.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So what you're

         21  saying is that there are projects that EDC have

         22  wanted and worked with the Council on and worked

         23  with the community on and it got to the ULURP

         24  process and it failed?

         25                 MR. LIEBER: No, I don't think I said
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          2  that. What I'm saying is what we're trying to do is

          3  to just maximize the probability of the expected

          4  outcome, that which we see is that which we get, and

          5  we could do it on an expedited basis.

          6                 I can't say that there haven't been

          7  projects that the EDC has gone through ULURP that

          8  haven't failed. I don't know, I've only been here

          9  for four months.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, no, I know. And

         11  I apologize for that. And I understand that you've

         12  only been here a few months, but there is a long

         13  history with many of your staff members, and I'm

         14  pretty sure they know exactly what I'm getting at,

         15  which is that by you doing the ULURP process first

         16  you are taking the City Council out of the process

         17  afterwards, whereas if the ULURP was done after the

         18  developer was chosen, we would still have a lot of

         19  say as the project moves forward, and I would

         20  suggest, and I'm trying to really figure it out,

         21  there must be a reason, and I guess I'm curious as

         22  to what that reason is. We feel that we're actually

         23  a very healthy part of the process as it goes

         24  through --

         25                 MR. LIEBER: As do we.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right. And so we

          3  always had a very good relationship I think with

          4  EDC.

          5                 MR. LIEBER: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And, so, what I'm

          7  saying is that if you do the ULURP first, it

          8  certainly limits our involvement in how this project

          9  moves forward.

         10                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I think even as we

         11  go through this, it's still going to require

         12  approval by the Borough Board, after we go through

         13  the ULURP. So, let me be clear, we're not doing this

         14  because we're trying to do an end run on City

         15  Council input on this at all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would suggest

         17  then, as we do move forward through the process,

         18  that you might want to consider, and your staff

         19  might want to consider researching this and think

         20  about it very carefully. Because as you move through

         21  the ULURP process, you're asking the City Council to

         22  approve an unknown. And I would suggest to you as

         23  the Chair of the Committee, that that might be a

         24  little more difficult as you move forward, because I

         25  will have an inordinate amount of questions as we
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          2  move forward through the process.

          3                 So, I'm just throwing that out there.

          4  I'm not putting you on the spot now. I know you've

          5  only been here for a few months, and this is the

          6  first hearing. I appreciate that.

          7                 MR. LIEBER: I respect your point of

          8  view and will be happy to work with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         10                 The second thing is, how are we

         11  paying for the infrastructure? Do you have that?

         12                 MR. LIEBER: We believe again, the way

         13  we've looked at this, is we think a large part, if

         14  not all of the infrastructure costs, certainly the

         15  on-site costs are going to be paid for by the

         16  developers who bid on this. So, we think the private

         17  market is going to bear the bulk of the cost of

         18  this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And you think

         20  they're going to pay for it just out of their

         21  capital? Do you want to do a pilot?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: Oh, there will be a

         23  number of as-of-right incentives that we will

         24  provide for them, and then they'll provide it out of

         25  their capital as well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There's nothing in

          3  the document suggesting a pilot, so you haven't

          4  thought about it so far yet. Okay.

          5                 MR. LIEBER: We're not to that point

          6  yet.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, fair enough.

          8                 Can you talk a little bit about the

          9  businesses that are there now and the use of eminent

         10  domain as we move forward?

         11                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I would say that

         12  what we want to do with the businesses that are

         13  there today, particularly for those businesses that

         14  are the owner-occupied, it is our goal to enter into

         15  this in a way that we could have negotiated

         16  transaction.

         17                 You know, the eminent domain is a

         18  word that people use. Our goal is to not have to do

         19  any of that. I think that there are compelling

         20  economic reasons for both the existing land owners

         21  and businesses, because these are operating

         22  businesses here that employ people to have as much

         23  certainty as quickly as they can. We think it's in

         24  their best interests to do that, and we think it's

         25  certainly in the City's best interest to do that,
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          2  without resorting to a long, drawn out protracted

          3  process.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, my assumption

          5  is then that negotiations of the businesses that are

          6  there will continue basically until you get some

          7  sort of an agreement with them?

          8                 MR. LIEBER: Certainly that is our

          9  goal, yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And I guess my

         11  assumption then is that since your planning on doing

         12  the ULURP first and then the RFP, that the

         13  assessment that you use for the values of the

         14  property will be that after the ULURP?

         15                 MR. LIEBER: Well, again, I don't

         16  think we have finalized how we're going to value

         17  this.

         18                 I think what we want to do is sit

         19  down with the businesses that are there today, and

         20  figure out what they think is a fair value. We will

         21  retain our own experts in valuation methodologies to

         22  advise us in terms of what is fair value, and we

         23  would expect that as I sit here today, those values

         24  would be based on kind of what current market values

         25  are or what, you know, projected values would be at
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          2  time of closing, which would be approximate to the

          3  same time.

          4                 Does that answer your question?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, it answers my

          6  question if we're not sure the process that you're

          7  going to take. And it seems to me that although my

          8  suggestion to you was that we do it the other way,

          9  that you're pretty set at least today of doing the

         10  ULURP first, which means that by the time you sit

         11  down and negotiate with the businesses that are

         12  there, the value of that property will be current at

         13  the C4-4.

         14                 MR. LIEBER: I believe what you said

         15  is correct. We're negotiating with the businesses,

         16  you know, starting say a week ago. We would like to

         17  be able to reach a fair agreement with these land

         18  owners, as soon as we can, and that would be prior

         19  to or commensurate with the ULURP process.

         20                 We're beginning those discussions

         21  now. We had our first one-on-one meeting, frankly,

         22  today, and it's our expectation that we're going to

         23  certify in the ULURP in the fall, October, November.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If this hearing

         25  hasn't convinced you to change your mind.

                                                            50

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2                 MR. LIEBER: I was just describing

          3  what our current plans were.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're very good.

          5                 So, maybe you, me and the Co-chair

          6  can have discussions at some point, and the member

          7  whose district it's in, regarding --

          8                 MR. LIEBER: Let me just point out to

          9  you, I've been corrected.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. I hate when

         11  that happens.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: The value that we look at

         13  these values today are the values under their

         14  current use. It would not be the rezoned value.

         15  We're looking at this as if we were to acquire this

         16  property today, what's it worth, not an as of future

         17  value.

         18                 So, you asked me about the C4-4,

         19  which is the new zoning. We're looking at the

         20  valuation of these assets and the land and under its

         21  current use.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Not to beat a dead

         23  horse, so if I own property there, it's to my

         24  interest to basically wait until the ULURP is done,

         25  and if it is not in my interest to wait until the
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          2  ULURP is done, I guess the next question would be

          3  why not?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I can't say what's

          5  in your best interest. I can say that it is my

          6  belief, if I were running a business, that I would

          7  want to have as much certainty about what I'm doing

          8  about planning for my business and the growth of my

          9  business as I possibly can, and if I don't know when

         10  I'm relocating or where I'm relocating or how I'm

         11  going to relocate, that causes an uncertainty level

         12  to how I'm going to run and grow my business, which

         13  I may want to consider when I look at what the value

         14  of the asset is as it sits there today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Maybe we should

         16  talk about it at some future point.

         17                 MR. LIEBER: We can talk about it

         18  tomorrow.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Because it does

         20  seem that if on the one hand you're saying we're not

         21  going to use eminent domain in order to take the

         22  businesses because we really don't want to. I mean,

         23  it's not our perfect --

         24                 MR. LIEBER: I'm saying we don't want

         25  to.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We don't want to.

          3                 But then on the other hand, we're

          4  going to value the property as what it is now, as

          5  opposed to C4-4. Those two never really meet.

          6                 MR. LIEBER: I'm happy to discuss that

          7  one-on-one.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That would be good.

          9                 MR. LIEBER: Or any way you'd like to

         10  do it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. You

         12  know, clearly I can ask more, but I know that

         13  everyone else has questions to ask, and we had

         14  promised the Councilman whose district it's in to go

         15  next and so we will do that, and we appreciate your

         16  time. Thank you.

         17                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         19  to both the Chairs, for having this hearing on a

         20  very important issue. I have a few questions myself.

         21  I think some of the answers I believe leave some

         22  questions still to me that the Co-Chair Melinda Katz

         23  asked with respect to eminent domain and the

         24  rezoning. But I want to go to your testimony for a

         25  moment.
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          2                 Specifically you said you want to

          3  ensure that this was a City plan as opposed to a

          4  developer's plan, which part of the argument you

          5  used was to pick a developer before the ULURP; is

          6  that not correct?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: By the

          9  way, congratulations on your new position here at

         10  EDC. This is the first time I meet you, so it's a

         11  pleasure meeting you.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm a

         14  little perplexed as to why we would call it a City

         15  plan. We sent out RFIs, right? Request For Ideas?

         16  And now the RFIs have come back. We're sending a

         17  proposal out, again based on what we received; is

         18  that not correct?

         19                 In other words, let me make it

         20  simpler for you.

         21                 MR. LIEBER: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: If we're

         23  saying it's a City plan, then why are we taking all

         24  the ideas from the private developers?

         25                 MR. LIEBER: We want to make sure that
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          2  what we're talking about is feasible.

          3                 We want to make sure that what we're

          4  talking about is something that can get done. And we

          5  think that there is no better judge than that which

          6  sophisticated major private market developers tell

          7  us that they're excited about willing to do.

          8                 When you talk about a project that

          9  has a cost estimate in excess of $3 billion, you

         10  better be as right as you can about what you're

         11  talking about doing. And if we were to go off and

         12  come up with a plan and not have feedback from the

         13  marketplace, we'd be really going in the dark.

         14                 And in fact, if I can add to that a

         15  little bit, we went out with the RFEI, which I

         16  understand all these acronyms, a Request for

         17  Expressions of Interest --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         19                 MR. LIEBER: And we received eight

         20  proposals, seven or eight proposals from development

         21  teams. Not just single developers but development

         22  teams, and then we said, wow, there is a lot of

         23  enthusiasm for this on a large scale. This has

         24  significant economic impact on what we can do here

         25  in the City, I wonder if we can do it.
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          2                 So, Neil and Kevin, and your firms

          3  look at it from the other side, come up with a plan

          4  that works within all the different -- come up with

          5  a development and a design plan that works within

          6  the constraints of flight path and flood plane and

          7  other things. And Kevin, tell us just exactly, with

          8  your 25 years of experience of business in the area,

          9  and with your firm's experience, you know, can we do

         10  this? You know, is it feasible to build in this

         11  area? Is it feasible to clean this up? How are we

         12  going to do that? And working with Neil's, we had

         13  several design firms present their plans to us. We

         14  selected the Byer Blender Bell Plan, and then we

         15  went back to the original recipients from the

         16  marketplace to say, okay, before we go off here, are

         17  you guys still okay with this? Here is our plan.

         18  Here is a little more specificity about our plan,

         19  there are still a lot of questions and there are

         20  still a lot of answers we need to develop, but is

         21  this something you are still enthusiastic about, and

         22  the feedback we got was, wildly enthusiastic about

         23  it, it's such a tremendous opportunity.

         24                 So, that's how we've kind of gone

         25  about this.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I got you.

          3  And I recognize the work that EDC has put into this.

          4  I've met with them a few times and have expressed

          5  many of my concerns, some of which have been dealt

          6  with, some of which have not, but it's just

          7  interesting to me, because I think the question that

          8  Chairman White asked didn't get a clear answer.

          9                 When we talk about this development,

         10  and the developers obviously want to do the

         11  development, obviously the land has to be free of

         12  anyone else, we have to deal with the issue of

         13  contamination in infrastructure, and I'm assuming

         14  both private and public investment.

         15                 But since we are the City Council,

         16  I'm concerned, and I would like a response to what

         17  do we project will be the public investment into

         18  this $3 billion project.

         19                 MR. LIEBER: You know, I'm not trying

         20  to be evasive on this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I will

         22  accept ball park answers.

         23                 MR. LIEBER: Hopefully the public will

         24  put little, if anything, into this, that we can

         25  recover the costs of this at the end from the
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          2  private development community.

          3                 Now, it could also cost us 100

          4  million, 200 million, you know, I just don't know as

          5  we sit here right now, but we think there is enough

          6  gap between what the costs are and what the values

          7  are that there is plenty of room in here for us to

          8  recover the bulk of our costs in front of the

          9  development community.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, let's

         11  go with the $200 million figure; so it's your belief

         12  that the City will not outlay more than $200 million

         13  initially for this project?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: No, that's not my belief.

         15  I don't know what it's going to be.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You don't

         17  know.

         18                 MR. LIEBER: It's very early in the

         19  process. I don't believe we've come up with a

         20  specific budget yet, or figured out what the costs

         21  are or what the City is going to pay. You asked for

         22  my guesstimate, that's kind of my range. I don't

         23  know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         25  When do you think that EDC might have an answer to
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          2  how much public investment there will be into this

          3  project?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: My guess is that as we go

          5  through the ULURP process we'll have a much better

          6  sense of that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, you're

          8  attempting to ULURP at some time fall or winter of

          9  this year; am I not correct?

         10                 MR. LIEBER: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So your

         12  testimony is that some time before that ULURP you

         13  will have an answer for that question?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: We will try and do that

         15  either before or during that ULURP process, yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         17                 And then you spoke about the current

         18  blight that exists, and you showed some pictures;

         19  why hasn't the City provided basic services like

         20  sidewalks and sewers in Willets Point?

         21                 MR. LIEBER: I don't know.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: That's a

         23  fair answer. Does anyone else from EDC know?

         24                 MR. LIEBER: I would make one other

         25  comment, and I'm going off track and I apologize to
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          2  Council Member Katz, because this is going to be a

          3  little longer than she wanted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: We all

          5  want short answers.

          6                 MR. LIEBER: One of the things that

          7  we've talked about and I've become aware about was

          8  the project when Council Member Katz was working

          9  with Borough President Shulman on the plan, I

         10  believe this was in the early '90s, and when we

         11  looked at some of the costs associated with

         12  providing services and providing the sewers and

         13  providing the other parts of this, you know, there

         14  is a cost benefit part of the economics of this, and

         15  certainly the City was in a different place in '91

         16  and '92 --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         18                 MR. LIEBER: But more importantly,

         19  okay? The real estate market just could not be more

         20  diametrically different today than it was 16 years

         21  ago. You could not get a dollar for real estate from

         22  the private. They were all struggling to stay alive,

         23  and today the market is just a flood of capital.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, I

         25  have a couple more just with respect to the services
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          2  and lack of infrastructure, which I think has

          3  compounded already a bad issue; in your testimony

          4  you stated that Willets Point is an environmental

          5  hazard. That was your testimony a few minutes ago.

          6                 MR. LIEBER: I think I said it was

          7  contaminated.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You said

          9  environmental hazard.

         10                 MR. LIEBER: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: If you

         12  didn't really mean that, that's okay.

         13                 MR. LIEBER: It's an environmental

         14  hazard, okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. The

         16  only reason I raise this, I'm not trying to be cute,

         17  I want to be very clear on my point here. On the one

         18  hand, and I had expressed this to EDC, on the one

         19  hand we can't talk about the blight that exists in

         20  Willets Point, which is the district that I

         21  represent, and many of these workers that are here

         22  today, we can't talk about the blight and the

         23  environmental hazard, if we don't take a look at

         24  what we as a City have not done. So, we didn't put

         25  the sewage in, we didn't put the sidewalks in, and
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          2  we've done nothing to clean up this site for the

          3  last 30 to 50 years.

          4                 MR. LIEBER: Maybe longer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          6                 So, we, as a City, all the

          7  stakeholders, the Borough Presidents, the Council

          8  Members, the Mayor and EDC have to accept our

          9  responsibility that today, if it is a blight, it's

         10  largely because the City hasn't taken action.

         11                 (Applause.)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No. Let's give the

         13  respect to EDC that they deserve. And let the

         14  testimony continue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: Well, the only point that

         17  I would add to that is --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes, sir.

         19                 MR. LIEBER: Is that we think the

         20  responsible way to redevelop this site is to do it

         21  in a way that is responsible for the citizens, the

         22  employees, and the employers and the housing owners

         23  in that location as we go forward.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         25                 MR. LIEBER: That how ever we got
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          2  where we are, we are.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          4                 MR. LIEBER: But going forward we can

          5  control what we do going forward.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          7                 MR. LIEBER: And it's important we do

          8  this in a total holistic and responsible way so that

          9  people who live there and work there will have an

         10  appropriate condition that they can be a part of.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         12  sir.

         13                 I want to talk to you about going

         14  forward, and the development.

         15                 One of the points that I have raised

         16  to EDC in my discussion is including some of the

         17  business owners and property owners that are there

         18  today into this new development. And what's the

         19  likelihood of that? And are there any intentions or

         20  is there a will by EDC to do that?

         21                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I think, you know,

         22  again, I'm struck when you look at some of the land

         23  owners and the businesses that are there today. You

         24  know, we would hope it would be a great opportunity

         25  for them going forward to provide a lot of the
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          2  services and the construction work and the materials

          3  that we're going to be using.

          4                 We have one of the major contractors

          5  in the whole area that's one of the largest land

          6  owners there. They're everywhere. They're very

          7  important. We have other suppliers of sewage pipe

          8  and other construction materials that are a very

          9  important part of this.

         10                 So, you know, again, we're all about

         11  creating the jobs here as well and growing these

         12  businesses, so we hope that there is a very

         13  important role that they can play as we go forward

         14  in the redevelopment of this site.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         16                 So, are we talking about possibly

         17  co-development, or are we talking about some of them

         18  actually staying where they are?

         19                 MR. LIEBER: No, we're talking about

         20  providing the construction services for the

         21  redevelopment that takes place there. They are more

         22  than willing, you know, again, that's the great

         23  thing about this City and this country, they're more

         24  than willing to compete with the private market for

         25  those redevelopment opportunities when we get to the
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          2  point to do the RFP, and my assumption is some of

          3  these developers will reach out to utilize some of

          4  the folks who do own land and operate businesses

          5  here.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I have

          7  another question. In your testimony you outline --

          8  I'm being told that this should be my last question,

          9  so I will wrap it up. Maybe we'll have a second

         10  round, Madam Chair?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That would be

         12  great.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. So,

         14  then my last question will be with respect -- I have

         15  so many questions, let's see which one to pick.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: And I would be happy to

         17  meet with you after this one-on-one for other

         18  questions that you have.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         20                 If the Chair will indulge me, two

         21  quick questions.

         22                 One is with the issue of housing.

         23  Now, the issue of housing, which is very important

         24  to me, and the competing interests to the current

         25  stakeholders who are there on site now, the plan
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          2  calls for 5,500 units of housing. Your testimony is

          3  that a considerable amount of that will be

          4  affordable. Do you have any more details than just a

          5  blanket statement of affordability?

          6                 MR. LIEBER: I do not. It is too early

          7  to make that kind of commitment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, with

          9  that 5,500 unit, are we taking into account, and I

         10  imagine that the environmental impact study will do

         11  that, the 7 Train, which is now probably one of the

         12  most over-used in the system, ask anyone who is

         13  trying to get on the 7 train today to get to work,

         14  we won't talk about congestion pricing today,

         15  though, I promise. You ask anyone who is trying to

         16  get on the 7 Train in Flushing, in Corona, in

         17  Jackson Heights and Elmhurst, how much room there is

         18  during rush hour, we're talking about a massive

         19  development that will include 5,500 units of

         20  housing, a convention center, a hotel, other chain

         21  stores, so we're literally talking about thousands

         22  and thousands of residents and merchants and so

         23  forth, how are they getting to the City? Have we

         24  worked that out? Is there a plan to deal with that?

         25                 MR. LIEBER: That has not been vetted
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          2  yet. Clearly, the infrastructure and transportation

          3  needs of the community are critical to the plan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          5                 MR. LIEBER: So whether we create

          6  additional bus service, what we're going to do, it's

          7  certainly an important --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I would

          9  love EDC to champion the creation of another subway

         10  line, maybe on Northern Boulevard.

         11                 I mean, we're talking about stadiums,

         12  imagine Shea Stadium, our Mets make it to the World

         13  Series, which we hope for this year, right?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: For every year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Everyone

         16  is for the New York Mets, right? I'm a Met fan,

         17  sorry.

         18                 So, the Mets get to the World Series,

         19  and there's 5,500 units of housing, and I can tell

         20  you that the residents of East Elmhurst, Corona,

         21  Jackson Heights and Flushing, what it's like to get

         22  home during game day today. So, if you add all this

         23  major development, its pretty major, right? North of

         24  3 billion is pretty major, how can we do that if

         25  we're not taking long-range planning to include more
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          2  highway accessibility and more mass transit, and it

          3  shouldn't be buses, we should be talking about

          4  building other subway lines.

          5                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

          6                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. And I do

          8  think it's a good idea for us to get together after.

          9  We have a lot of questions. And I don't want, by the

         10  way, as I'm sitting here listening to Hiram, I don't

         11  want it to be thought that I'm against the project.

         12  It's really just the process of it --

         13                 MR. LIEBER: No, this is all about

         14  getting the information and we want the feedback.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right, it's just

         16  the process and things like that.

         17                 MR. LIEBER: That's fine. That's fine.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just wanted to

         19  make that clear.

         20                 Councilman Avella.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 Mr. Lieber, you've been on board

         24  since February, so I don't know if I should say

         25  condolences or congratulations.
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          2                 Congratulations for being the

          3  President of EDC. Condolences for being the

          4  President of EDC.

          5                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you very much.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I don't share

          7  the comments of some of my colleagues that EDC has

          8  been doing a good job. I've had experience with EDC

          9  prior to your tenure with the College Point

         10  Corporate Park and I can assure you that the level

         11  of community involvement has been nil. Absolutely

         12  nil. I hope that you will do a better job when it

         13  comes to this development.

         14                 MR. LIEBER: We will try.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I have a

         16  couple of questions. First of all, you know, you

         17  didn't use the word blight, though. I notice that

         18  you didn't use that word. It was used by Council

         19  members, but you basically said something to that

         20  effect, like a depressed area, and if you look at

         21  your presentation with the pictures, you show the

         22  pictures of the streets with no street, with no

         23  sidewalk, the ponding conditions, but you don't show

         24  the pictures of the reputable businesses that have

         25  been there for generations. Obviously that is
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          2  deliberate. You want to show the worst case

          3  scenario.

          4                 I think it was Hiram that brought up

          5  the fact that the City hasn't done anything for

          6  decades in this location and I think we all agree on

          7  that.

          8                 But there are a number of businesses

          9  that have survived there that have put their sweat

         10  and toil into the buildings, and I've been in some

         11  of those buildings. They're well established, very

         12  nice buildings that could fit any place in the City

         13  of New York. So, now, in effect, after they've given

         14  commitment of decades and in some cases generations

         15  of families in that area to make their business

         16  survive, the City now is going to turn around and

         17  give them a swift kick in the butt and say we want

         18  to develop this, but you've got to go.

         19                 When you listed the things that you

         20  were offering to work with the businesses, about

         21  relocation and job creation, the one thing you

         22  didn't mention was if you asked them if they want to

         23  stay. I don't think you ever asked them that.

         24                 (Applause.)

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm telling you
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          2  right now, as much as I want information as well,

          3  and as much as I understand people's passion about

          4  this, I'm not going to go down that road, okay? So,

          5  either side, just so you know, pro or against.

          6  Thanks.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So, my

          8  question in that regard is, what happens if a

          9  business really wants to stay? They've found the

         10  best location for themselves, they've been there for

         11  generations, they put a lot of money into the

         12  building when the City did nothing for them. I'm

         13  talking about the reputable businesses now. If they

         14  want to stay, what are you going to do?

         15                 MR. LIEBER: Let me comment and say I

         16  think it's important for us to consider all the

         17  businesses that are there, and I don't describe any

         18  of them as being reputable or irreputable. I think

         19  these are all people who have jobs, they employ

         20  people and have businesses there, and it's important

         21  for us to try and retain many of those employers and

         22  opportunities for those employees as we possibly

         23  can.

         24                 I mentioned earlier that we feel that

         25  in order to do this properly, the way to address the
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          2  needs of this site require that we clear the entire

          3  site, that we remediate the site, that we surcharge

          4  the site and put pilings on the site so we can

          5  accommodate the existing field conditions which

          6  exist there today. And we are in a flood plane,

          7  we're in a high-water table, and we have ground

          8  contamination, the extent of which we don't really

          9  know. We only know that which exists for the areas

         10  that we can test.

         11                 So, we think in order to do this in a

         12  responsible way, we need to clear the entire site.

         13  And we are going to work every way we can with these

         14  land owners to come up with a way that is fair to

         15  their businesses, and we can treat them in a fair,

         16  appropriate, economic way.

         17                 So, hopefully through the process of

         18  negotiation we can come up with deal terms that work

         19  and accommodate that need.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I would just

         21  disagree with you in terms of the fact that you need

         22  the entire site, to remediate you need to get

         23  everybody out. I think you can use that argument on

         24  almost any piece of property the City wanted to

         25  develop. Obviously it would be easier to remediate
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          2  with the infrastructure if nobody was there. But we

          3  don't do that, if there are reputable businesses or

          4  are residential homes in an area we would want to

          5  develop, we don't. We try and accommodate them

          6  within a development.

          7                 I just find it fascinating that we're

          8  in effect going to tell all these businesses we're

          9  going to help you relocate, we're going to do our

         10  best, but you didn't really answer my question. In

         11  the final analysis this City will condemn if

         12  somebody doesn't want to leave; yes or no?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: We will do everything we

         14  do -- we can do to accommodate the needs of these

         15  businesses. But as the Mayor said on May 1st, he's

         16  not going to let one person be the hold out for the

         17  good that's associated with so many other people.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Okay, May 1st

         19  of what year?

         20                 MR. LIEBER: 2001.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I'm sorry,

         22  you're talking about the Mayor's statement?

         23                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: What happens,

         25  at what point, since you've already got a time line,
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          2  at what point do you start to cut off negotiations

          3  because you want to move this ahead and you start to

          4  move towards seizure? Because you have a time line.

          5  Now, you also said in your earlier testimony that

          6  you want to get everybody on board, but if that

          7  doesn't happen, are you going to hold the whole

          8  project up? No.

          9                 MR. LIEBER: I think those facts will

         10  become more evident to us over the next four to six

         11  months as we work towards going into ULURP, and

         12  we'll have a better, be in a better position to

         13  answer that question with some specificity for you,

         14  Council Member, at that time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I would just

         16  say to you that, and, again, you're new, that the

         17  history of EDC has been, in my opinion, extremely

         18  bad. Commitments that are made are generally never

         19  followed through. Again, not within the last few

         20  months, EDC has done a turnaround, at least in the

         21  College Point Corporate Park, but only after the

         22  elected officials and the community board in effect

         23  almost went to war with EDC. You have a very bad

         24  track record, the agency does, of fulfilling

         25  commitments, in my opinion. Other people can
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          2  disagree.

          3                 So, I'm a little leery of what you're

          4  saying in terms of all these businesses and the

          5  people that are employed by them, that their future

          6  is up in the air, and I don't know if that's the

          7  right thing to do by them by the City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I guess I have to

          9  take prerogative here just for a minute, because

         10  maybe I'm missing something. I know I was an

         11  attorney, I was a mergers and acquisitions lawyer,

         12  but perhaps I am missing something.

         13                 If you're taking the property at the

         14  value that it's worth before the ULURP, but you're

         15  going to choose the buyer for the value of after the

         16  ULURP. There's something missing there, isn't there?

         17                 MR. LIEBER: It's the additional

         18  capital that is created to pay for the costs to

         19  develop and redevelop the site.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're meeting

         21  again, right?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: I'll go M and A with you

         23  any time (sic).

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I look forward to

         25  that. Thank you. That would be Councilman Comrie
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          2  next.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: No, me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Oh, I'm sorry,

          5  you're right. Council Member Weprin. Sorry. I

          6  apologize.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Okay. Good

          8  afternoon, Mr. Lieber. Nice to see you again.

          9                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Post budget,

         11  or almost post budget.

         12                 You know I've heard some buzz words

         13  that I like here, but then I kind of heard some

         14  inconsistent testimony or statements, so, you know,

         15  I just want a little clarification.

         16                 I share a lot of my colleagues'

         17  sentiments, and I guess you've heard it here, that

         18  we're concerned about the treatment of the

         19  businesses that have been there for many years, and

         20  the fact that they would be treated fairly. And I

         21  think it's pretty much a consensus of this Council

         22  that we would like not to see eminent domain in this

         23  case, and it seems to me the buzz words we're

         24  hearing, or the sentiment, is that you do not want

         25  to do eminent domain and you want to negotiate
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          2  fairly with due consideration; is that correct?

          3                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: With the owners?

          5                 I was happy to hear that, but then

          6  after Councilman Avella was questioning you, you

          7  seemed to back off a little bit from that siting the

          8  Mayor's statement on May 1st.

          9                 You know, I have a couple of concerns

         10  also about the point that was brought up by Chair

         11  Katz and others about giving fair market value prior

         12  to upzoning, and then obviously the idea is that the

         13  value of the property will probably go up

         14  significantly afterwards.

         15                 Let me ask you a couple of questions

         16  that may be possibilities of a compromise or a way

         17  to kind of work with the existing businesses fairly.

         18                 One is, is the City only, and you

         19  haven't chosen a developer yet, committed to one

         20  developer, or is it possible that some of the land

         21  owners, if they, you know, meet the qualifications

         22  and are able to get involved, could become part of

         23  the development as well; is that a possibility?

         24                 MR. LIEBER: Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Okay, that's
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          2  good to hear.

          3                 And then a second part of that

          4  question is, is a compromise position possible where

          5  the area could be remediated, sewers installed and

          6  major businesses relocated to a different portion of

          7  the triangle that could preserve industrial jobs and

          8  still allow the redevelopment of most of the

          9  property?

         10                 MR. LIEBER: We don't believe so at

         11  this stage.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: And why not?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: Our experts have told us

         14  that if we are going to do the proper job of

         15  remediating the site and ensuring that the people

         16  who move and live and work there are going forward,

         17  in order to do that, we have to remediate the entire

         18  site, and we cannot do it in a checker board or

         19  piecemeal basis.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Well, would

         21  you be able to entertain proposals? Since you

         22  indicated that some of the existing owners could

         23  participate in the RFP process, would you at least

         24  consider those type of proposals or parts of

         25  proposals in the overall picture?
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: We'll be very open minded

          3  to anything we can. You know, again, we've worked,

          4  the collective we in this case, my colleagues and

          5  others in the community have worked very hard for

          6  the past five years to come up with this plan. We

          7  want to see this get done. We think it's a big win

          8  for the City of New York, and at this stage of the

          9  game there is nothing that I say no to because it's

         10  important for us to hear from the land owners and

         11  the businesses in terms of what their needs and

         12  their desires are. And I told them when I met with a

         13  number of them a week ago, I'm not sitting here

         14  telling you what you get or you don't get. We want

         15  to work with you collaboratively to come up with a

         16  plan that works for you, and to just say no and I'm

         17  going to sit here and do nothing is one alternative,

         18  we don't think that's in the cards. We want to come

         19  up with a way to address those needs, and we're open

         20  to you. We're open to hearing from you, so we're

         21  open to hearing anything.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Okay. Well,

         23  I'm liking the language I'm hearing. You know, and,

         24  again, as you can see by the sentiment of myself and

         25  my colleagues, you know, we are concerned with fair
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          2  treatment of existing businesses, especially in

          3  light of the fact that in some cases, as Councilman

          4  Avella pointed out, our second and third and even

          5  fourth generation businesses in the area who have

          6  contributed to the economy of Queens and the City

          7  for many years.

          8                 So, I would urge you to do everything

          9  you can to negotiate in good faith and fairly with

         10  the businesses. And also keep in mind when you're

         11  negotiating, the value of the property in the event

         12  that the likely possibility of the upzoning taking

         13  place.

         14                 So, I think that should enter into

         15  your negotiations and considerations and I would

         16  hope that would enter into the fair picture.

         17                 You know, having said that, you know,

         18  again, I would just urge that you continue to

         19  negotiate with the businesses, and keep in mind the

         20  potential value of the property as well, in the

         21  likely possibility that the upzoning take place.

         22                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         24  afternoon, Chairman Lieber.

         25                 I'm glad to see from your testimony
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          2  that you have started to focus on the businesses

          3  that are there.

          4                 As you know, when we spoke at our

          5  first opportunity to meet I talked to you about the

          6  need to ensure that the existing businesses that the

          7  City worked on their relocations issues as with as

          8  much force and determination as they are working on

          9  the whole Willets Point Project, and I'm glad to see

         10  that that's now part of your testimony. I recognize

         11  you've been there a long time. I hope someone

         12  brought you some water or some mints or something,

         13  so that you can relax a little bit.

         14                 You know, I want to preface it to say

         15  that I've had a good relationship with EDC in my

         16  tenure, and I want to thank those people at EDC that

         17  have been working with projects that I've been

         18  involved with and I want to say that I've had a good

         19  relationship, and so far they've kept their promises

         20  to me, so I want to thank them for that. And I'm

         21  sure you'll continue to increase that ability to get

         22  there and I just want to, you know, the Jamaica

         23  Court House project was a project that was done,

         24  embedded with the community and a lot of

         25  opportunities for community input was there, and the

                                                            81

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  way that was done is the kind of the way that I'd

          3  like to see this done. Unfortunately I do have to

          4  agree with Council Member Katz that it would be

          5  better if we picked a developer first and then came

          6  back and did the ULURP process. I'm very leery of

          7  losing our leverage as City Council members to

          8  impact the pieces of this project. I do prefer, as

          9  she said, that we come back to this project after a

         10  developer is chosen, after we understand what the

         11  infrastructure needs are, after we understand what

         12  the total cost of remediation will be. And I think

         13  that all can be done within a year. I don't think

         14  that, if you look at your own time line, I don't see

         15  where that cannot be done under this administration,

         16  under your leadership, and under the cooperation of

         17  all of the people in the room. And by that time, we

         18  could have a lot more opportunities to work with the

         19  businesses there, to work with the community, to see

         20  what can be done to create a win/win, and that's

         21  kind of been my focus, to ensure that we have an

         22  opportunity to improve the site, but to make sure

         23  that -- you know, unfortunately the experience from

         24  Duffield Street where we allowed a ULURP to go back

         25  or to go out the door before we were able to deal
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          2  with the specific impacts of it, it concerns me. So,

          3  I am concerned as a Council, where we do have the

          4  people's ear that we can continue to work to ensure

          5  that this project moves along the lines that it

          6  really needs to move along.

          7                 So, I'm not going to take a whole lot

          8  of time with asking a lot or being repetitive, but I

          9  think that clearly this project has, I think a

         10  win/win scenario, people need to understand that we

         11  need to work towards, and I think to ensure that we

         12  work towards that win/win scenario, is to work with

         13  the business relocation program, work with the

         14  Council, work with the Borough President's Office

         15  and the former Borough President to create a

         16  win/win.

         17                 It's clear that that site is a

         18  blight. It's clear that that site has toxicity in

         19  it, but it's also clear that there are businesses

         20  that have struggled to work in that toxicity for

         21  years. And I think that they do need to be rewarded

         22  for their struggle and effort.

         23                 I think that the City does need to

         24  focus on development and redevelopment. But I think

         25  we could do a win/win here, and I think that we need
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          2  to focus our minds around coming up with scenarios

          3  to do that and I am leery of the Council not having

          4  the final say in that process to protect the issues

          5  of the community.

          6                 And with that, you know, again I want

          7  to, I'm not going to ask any specific questions, but

          8  I plan to be at all the meetings that Council Member

          9  Monserrate and Katz have about some concerns that we

         10  do focus on having more conversation and more

         11  discourse before we take it down a road where we

         12  wind up being in a situation where we don't control

         13  the process and effect the final outcome of the

         14  process.

         15                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to just

         17  acknowledge Council Member Simcha Felder has joined

         18  us, Council Member Diana Reyna has joined us,

         19  Council Member Rosie Mendez has joined us, and now I

         20  think I had Alan Gerson before, and now Helen Sears,

         21  please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.

         24                 Welcome, Mr. Lieber. You've been very

         25  informative with the project.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think first

          4  why the City hasn't done what it should have done

          5  many years ago, quite frankly is irrelevant to the

          6  issue. The City hasn't done a lot of things it

          7  should have done over the years, and somehow they

          8  begin to make up for it. So, I don't think we should

          9  get bogged down in why sewers weren't put in or

         10  stuff like that.

         11                 The fact is Willets Point needs to be

         12  developed, and some of the questions that are

         13  raised, though, are not diminished by the importance

         14  and the timeliness of having Willets Point

         15  developed.

         16                 For instance, in I think your RFI,

         17  and correct me if I'm wrong, it said that you would

         18  be using eminent domain, when that went out in '06,

         19  if you had to. Not that you would, but if you had

         20  to, you would. So the reason I'm raising that is, if

         21  you did not, would that slow down the interest of

         22  developers in wanting to take part in that if

         23  eminent domain was not used? Because that could slow

         24  down a process. I mean, I'm not advocating eminent

         25  domain, I'm raising a clinical question, actually.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: Let me try and answer the

          3  question a little differently, and this isn't --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: By answering a

          5  different question or different --

          6                 MR. LIEBER: By answering a different

          7  question.

          8                 What we're trying to do is to

          9  expedite the process any way we can, and we believe

         10  that a negotiated settlement and agreement that's

         11  fair is the best way to expedite the process. If the

         12  process lapses into a contentious, litigious

         13  process, that is not going to be consistent with

         14  expediting the process in getting this project

         15  built. So, that's why our focus is on trying to do

         16  this in a negotiated way and resist the legal

         17  alternatives which may exist.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I have concerns

         19  about the remediation costs that will take place,

         20  because if you're working out, prior to the ULURP

         21  process of resolving some of these monetary costs

         22  with the merchants that are already there, the

         23  property owners, and you go into the ULURP process,

         24  there's going to be a disparity in what you

         25  eventually come to in working out agreements with
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          2  those that you do after the ULURP process, and the

          3  ULURP process has to come back to the City Council,

          4  so the City Council really can't be excluded from

          5  various things, that you're going to have a

          6  disparity for those that you have worked with maybe

          7  in the last three months, or the next three months

          8  or four months. And I just wonder about the

          9  remediation cost, because eventually those costs

         10  will come back to the City. And even though you have

         11  stated that you hope on making those up, we have

         12  annual budgets, and we have, for the last four

         13  years, really worked at fiscal constraints with the

         14  Executive and also with the Council, and as we look

         15  into the further years, they're not as optimistic,

         16  we are now but not in the later years. So, I

         17  question just what happens with those monies, and

         18  it's not having very specific costs, but

         19  realistically where do you think you are, because

         20  you're going to work with some before and after the

         21  ULURP, and the remediation costs are going to be

         22  different because fair market value is at the given

         23  time, just like it is in any property.

         24                 So, I have concerns about that and

         25  exactly what will happen to the City's
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          2  responsibilities in escalating costs; can you

          3  address that?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: I will try. What I will

          5  say is that I would separate the remediation costs

          6  from the relocation costs, and the remediation costs

          7  we have today are rough estimates based on the input

          8  from our experts, consultants, based on what I'll

          9  call relatively limited amount of sampling that

         10  we've been able to do on the site, and that's the

         11  City-owned sites, the streets that are the common

         12  rights of way. So, we won't really know until we get

         13  into actually testing some of the land that is

         14  currently owned by the land owners, but a bigger

         15  picture what the actual cost might be.

         16                 I can tell you again, and I can't

         17  emphasize enough the fact that we recognize that

         18  there are a number of different businesses and

         19  employees and employers in Willets Point, and not

         20  just those that are in the salvage business, or the

         21  food business or the construction business, but

         22  there are a lot of different uses that are taking

         23  place out there. There are, again, a number of

         24  different generations which have been out there, and

         25  there's been land that's been acquired out there and
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          2  we've been a part of, "we" being the City, not EDC

          3  per se, at least not that I know of, about working

          4  with these land owners on some of the remediation

          5  that's already been done when they've acquired

          6  sites.

          7                 So, we know that there are some of

          8  the sites themselves that are probably in

          9  compliance, it's when we talk about redeveloping and

         10  what we don't know are the sites that aren't in

         11  compliance, and we won't have a better handle around

         12  those costs until we get there. Also what you

         13  identified in outgoing years in the budget, to

         14  Council Member Katz's issue, what I'll call the M

         15  and A question, and that is how much incremental

         16  value is there that the private market will pay that

         17  will generate capital sufficient to pay costs to

         18  build what we're talking about, as well as remediate

         19  that which is there.

         20                 So, that's an important part of the

         21  financial model, the financial puzzle, in terms of

         22  trying to determine what a real budget and a real

         23  dollar amount might be within the nearest X millions

         24  of dollars.

         25                 So, I think your point is absolutely
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          2  spot on and well founded, and those are some of the

          3  questions that we want to answer as we move forward

          4  in the process.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: With that, I'll

          6  quit while I'm ahead.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. And I'm

          8  going to ask my colleagues if we can really keep it

          9  short. A lot of questions have been asked already,

         10  we have Borough President Marshall here to testify,

         11  the former Borough President, everybody is here, all

         12  other folks here, there are 35 people, and we'll

         13  talk about that in a minute, who are here to

         14  testify. So, if I can ask my colleagues to be

         15  relatively brief, that would be great.

         16                 Kendall Stewart, please.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair. I have very short questions, so I don't

         19  think I'll take that long.

         20                 First of all, Mr. Lieber. Can I call

         21  you Robert?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: You can call me anything,

         23  but Bob Lieber is my name.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Okay, Bob.

         25  Yes, I'll be careful when you say anything.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: I mean it. I've been

          3  called lots of things.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          5  Listen, how many members of your staff is here today

          6  here?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: More than, I can't see

          8  everybody, five to ten people.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Most of the

         10  folks in the front row also?

         11                 MR. LIEBER: We have a number of

         12  people from my staff who are here. Dan, I don't

         13  think you qualify as my staff, but...

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And you talk

         15  of setting role models, right?

         16                 MR. LIEBER: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You spoke

         18  about setting role models, right, in terms of when

         19  you do this development?

         20                 MR. LIEBER: Seven?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Role models.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: He's saying "role

         23  models."

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I can't help

         25  it if I have a Caribbean accent. I can't help it.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: No, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But at least

          4  if you listen to me --

          5                 MR. LIEBER: I'm trying, I'm sorry.

          6  (Speaking in Spanish).

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

          8                 Now, you also spoke about MWBE and

          9  the help placing it.

         10                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The reason

         12  why I ask that, I was looking around to see how many

         13  minorities are in your echelon with your staff, and

         14  I didn't really recognize anybody that you mentioned

         15  just now that is part of your staff.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: We didn't invite people

         17  here --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No, I just

         19  want to see who is involved.

         20                 MR. LIEBER: I will tell you that the

         21  MWBE is a topic that comes up every time we come

         22  here.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         24                 How many businesses are owned, owner

         25  of businesses or even home owners do you think will
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          2  have to be displaced or relocated?

          3                 MR. LIEBER: I do not know.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You don't

          5  think it's a good idea for us to really know, have

          6  an idea, if you're going to develop this entire area

          7  to know how many people --

          8                 MR. LIEBER: Oh, I'm sorry. Everybody

          9  who is there is going to be relocated.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But how many?

         11                 MR. LIEBER: Two-hundred and fifty.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Only 250

         13  people to be relocated?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: No, 250 businesses we

         15  think. We estimate that the employer/employee base

         16  at Willets Point today is 1,300. I'm sorry, I didn't

         17  understand the question. So, 1,300 people, 250 plus

         18  businesses will all be relocated.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         20  What percentage of this area is owned by the City

         21  right now?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: Little to no.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Little to

         24  none, right.

         25                 MR. LIEBER: We own the rights of way
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          2  of the public streets.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, when you

          4  say fair, in terms of offer to relocate, the

          5  fairness that you're talking about is on our side,

          6  the City side, or from the businesses' side?

          7                 Because I think if you make them an

          8  offer, I want to know if they will say that it's

          9  fair. You're saying it's fair, but I'm not too sure

         10  that the businesses and the homeowners or the

         11  business owners will say it's fair. I want to know

         12  which side when you use the term fair, from what

         13  side are you talking about?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: I think for something to

         15  be actually deemed fair, it's something that has to

         16  respect the view of both sides of the transaction.

         17  And I'm not saying determining what's fair is going

         18  to be easy, or is going to be a byproduct of a

         19  single set of discussions, it will be a part of

         20  negotiation and we will try and come up with a

         21  common ground which requires each side to give and

         22  requires each side to capitulate, and that's what

         23  fair is all about.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Which will

         25  take some time.
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          2                 This plan is about, you said it will

          3  create about 20,000 construction jobs. And you

          4  indicated that MWBE will play a very important role,

          5  we will be able to see how Local Law 129 really

          6  fulfills this role? That's what you're saying?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: That's our goal.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          9                 The last question, Madam Chair, is

         10  that 250, there's basically 250 auto-related jobs

         11  that are there now, businesses that are there now;

         12  where do you think all those auto-related businesses

         13  will go if you have to relocate them?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: That remains to be

         15  determined. And I think --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If they were

         17  mixed businesses, I could understand, but 250 --

         18                 MR. LIEBER: I don't think that 250 is

         19  the number of the businesses that are in the

         20  auto-related businesses. The 250 that we talked

         21  about includes the other businesses as well. There

         22  certainly are a larger number of auto-related

         23  businesses that are a part of the tenancy that

         24  exists out there than others.

         25                 Frankly, I can't tell you if it's
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          2  150, but the 250 represents even those companies

          3  that have major land ownership positions and have

          4  major businesses there as well as to the smaller

          5  businesses. And one of the things that we're

          6  cognizant of is that in some cases for some of these

          7  employees, some of these businesses may be more

          8  difficult to be able to relocate.

          9                 So, what we want to do is be out

         10  there with the job assistant programs that I

         11  described, to make sure that they're well positioned

         12  to be able to get additional jobs, if in fact their

         13  employers move and they don't go with them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, I want

         15  to wish you all the luck, because I would like to

         16  see that this plan is developed and is built so that

         17  we can create more jobs in New York City. Thank you.

         18                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And I'm going to

         20  call on Councilman Seabrook because he is next, with

         21  the understanding to him that Councilman Gerson and

         22  Councilwoman Reyna have already agreed to one

         23  question or one and a half questions, just so you

         24  know. No pressure, Larry.

         25                 No, seriously, we are already with
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          2  EDC for two hours and I would like to wrap this up

          3  relatively soon. I apologize.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: You're

          5  taking up some of my time. I'm going to be quick.

          6                 The question that I'm going to ask

          7  probably would not be for an answer right now but

          8  you could provide us with the answers. Because one

          9  of the things that I want to just provide you with

         10  some information which you might not be familiar

         11  with, and then you can respond to that with this

         12  Committee.

         13                 MR. LIEBER: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Fifty-one

         15  percent of African-American males in this City, the

         16  City of New York are unemployed, between ages of 18

         17  and 30. The highest rate of unemployment. We're not

         18  talking about the national statistics, but in the

         19  City of New York. We are also undertaking 60 acres

         20  of development that's going to take place, which

         21  will probably be about four to $5 billion once you

         22  put all of this package together. That's a lot of

         23  money.

         24                 This is a very creative model that

         25  you're putting together, but how does it fit when a
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          2  majority of this City, a majority of this City is

          3  minority, but the lack of participation as it

          4  relates to jobs, I've been out to Willets Point,

          5  seeing some of the people, a lot of the people that

          6  work out there, with this displacement do they

          7  become part of this 51 percent that goes up and adds

          8  up? There has to be how do you look and how do you

          9  tie in those individuals so that they won't be a

         10  part of making this 5160. So, we need to look at

         11  that displacement, because the number of minority

         12  participants who are people who actually are working

         13  there is going to be a part of those that is going

         14  to be displaced as well. So, I would hope that we

         15  can look at that.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: I recognize that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Secondly,

         18  the goal of the MWBE, because it's one thing that

         19  you have the goal and the will, but when you get to

         20  a developer, he doesn't necessarily have to follow

         21  the goal and the will, as it relates to subs and

         22  everything else that he does. And then we have found

         23  out when it becomes a developer, it becomes a part

         24  of the FBI - Family, Brother and Inlaw. So, lack of

         25  participation is not there. They are not tied to
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          2  participation in MWBE once you give him the contract

          3  and you sub it out and that has become the problem.

          4  All these major contractors, and five of them in

          5  this City has not been the best at minority and

          6  women participation. They have a poor record. You've

          7  got a good record at EDC, but they have a poor

          8  record. Because they don't hire people of color as

          9  it relates in terms of contracting. You need to look

         10  at that so when you're talking about putting this

         11  RFP together, that that should be stipulated as to,

         12  you talked about those people who are there now and

         13  the services and they will be competing in the

         14  American Way and everything else, well, they should

         15  have the opportunity to be a part, because it's from

         16  their community, they stayed here when everybody

         17  else left, ran, didn't participate, the City didn't

         18  do what they were supposed to do, those people

         19  stayed, and they should have some preferential

         20  treatment as to how they participate in this

         21  development, because that's local, that's the

         22  economy and that should be a part of any RFP, that

         23  if they're there, and they're doing the same

         24  services that you're going to hire from somebody

         25  else that would be from Georgia or other places in
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          2  Connecticut, when you can do it right here with

          3  people who are living here, paying taxes here and

          4  have businesses here. So, I would hope that that is

          5  looked at when you do the analysis, and all of the

          6  people that have businesses there, that they're

          7  going to be selling those products, that they get an

          8  opportunity to sell those products for this

          9  development that's actually going to take place. And

         10  that would truly be participation from a minority

         11  business, women and local businesses, and that's

         12  what I'm looking for, and I will be at every hearing

         13  that we talk about because I want to see a real

         14  plan, not just wishful thinking because that's what

         15  has killed us with 51 percent unemployment. We've

         16  got to have something real. Real jobs for people.

         17                 MR. LIEBER: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         19                 Councilman Gerson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 Good afternoon, Mr. Lieber. I need to

         23  first congratulate you and EDC on the selection of

         24  Madelyn Wills as your newest Vice President.

         25  Certainly you could not have made a more superb

                                                            100

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  choice. But please don't hold my praise of her

          3  against her as we go forward, but I know she'll

          4  bring to EDC the energy and commitment she brought

          5  to Lower Manhattan community during the most

          6  difficult of times.

          7                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I look forward

          9  to working with you and your entire team to build on

         10  the collaborations we have enjoyed in Lower

         11  Manhattan with EDC to make progress.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: Terrific.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My one

         14  question, Madam Chair, is a policy question, really

         15  a broad Citywide policy question that was raised,

         16  though, by this development, and my question really,

         17  if not there, if not in Willets Point, where? Where

         18  in this City? And this may very well be the best of

         19  plans, as it turns out, for this particular area.

         20  But if that's the case, especially if that's the

         21  case, don't we not, as a City, and especially

         22  through EDC, have to address and answer the

         23  questions where in this City of New York do we

         24  locate the food distribution industries, the reaming

         25  industries, the scrap yards? I'm a little concerned
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          2  by your presentation with the kind of before and

          3  after photos, because in putting the issues of

          4  toxicity aside, which don't show up in the photos in

          5  any event, but because the implication here, you

          6  know, is that the after inherently is superior to

          7  the before, but I don't think that is necessarily

          8  the case. I think we in this City, we need gritty as

          9  well as glitzy, and we need to have the diversity.

         10  As a City we need a place, it seems to me, and

         11  correct me if you disagree, for the before, for what

         12  is depicted in the before, and it concerns me for

         13  economic reasons, for employment reasons, the

         14  diversity, the City is our strength.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Alan, you need to

         16  ask the question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, but the

         18  predicate is important here, because we, too often

         19  make this, I believe, incorrect assumption. So, my

         20  questions is, do you, EDC, and do we as a City, you

         21  said you didn't know where you were going to

         22  relocate these businesses, but do we have, or will

         23  we have an active strategy to preserve and maybe

         24  expand places that are conducive because of

         25  transportation arteries? Because the reason these,
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          2  and I'm concluding now, Madam Chair, the reasons

          3  these businesses are located here in Willets Point

          4  is because of the proximity to the highways so their

          5  businesses could use those distribution routes; do

          6  we have a strategy? Will we have a strategy to

          7  maintain industrial areas for these and other types

          8  of industrial, distribution and scrap yard-type

          9  businesses so there is a place for them in the City?

         10  Or are we building a City which will be devoid of

         11  such economic diversity?

         12                 MR. LIEBER: We are trying to continue

         13  to diversify the economy of New York City, both by

         14  industry and by borough, and there are a number of

         15  these businesses that are critical to the long-term

         16  future of this City, and we think -- we are

         17  optimistic that we will be able to identify

         18  additional locations that currently exist, whether

         19  it will be the benefit of co-location or co-tenancy

         20  opportunities for many of the existing businesses

         21  that locate in Willets Point.

         22                 I don't know that we are going to

         23  find a single location or enough locations to

         24  relocate all of the auto salvage businesses. I'm not

         25  saying we don't. I don't know. But the industrial
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          2  part of the economy is a critical part of that

          3  business base that we're trying to develop at EDC.

          4                 So, the answer is yes. And the other

          5  point I just want to make is that this plan is not

          6  EDC's plan or the City's plan. This plan came from

          7  the Downtown Flushing Task Force and the Willets

          8  Point Advisory Committee. This is based on the

          9  community's feedback to us. This isn't something we

         10  dreamt up.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I

         12  understand that, and that's why I specifically

         13  prefaced my remarks by saying this is a Citywide

         14  question, even if this is the best.

         15                 MR. LIEBER: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And Madam

         17  Chair, I look forward, I've heard the statement, but

         18  we need to follow up with some specifics for a real

         19  solid industrial plan for this City of New York.

         20  Thank you very much.

         21                 MR. LIEBER: Okay, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         23  Reyna.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 I just wanted to ask Mr. Lieber, the

          3  IBZ designation predates you as far as the

          4  industrial business zones throughout the City of New

          5  York that was created, but is there any reason as to

          6  why this area was never designated? And I know that

          7  you're surrounded by EDC that have been there longer

          8  than you, and so if someone from your administration

          9  would be able to answer that question, because in

         10  the midst of all of the discussion, as far as

         11  industrial business zones, and identifying

         12  boundaries to have them exist, for the very purpose

         13  that we want to create a viable industry of

         14  industrial manufacturing businesses in the City of

         15  New York, this being one of the most, perhaps not

         16  aesthetically or feasible areas due to a lack of

         17  City infrastructure that the City has ignored to put

         18  in place, but when you walk around there, all you

         19  see is business. So, having seen that, having

         20  noticed all of that, why was it not part of the IBZ

         21  discussions?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: Council member, the

         23  simple answer is I don't know. My understanding is

         24  we have 16 IBZs that are spread throughout the five

         25  boroughs. The Mayor created these industrial
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          2  business zones in many different parts of the City

          3  and have created an office to support these

          4  businesses, the office or industrial manufacturing

          5  businesses, so I would go out on a limb and say that

          6  I believe this Administration recognizes the need

          7  for a diversified economy and industrial zones so

          8  that we can keep these types of businesses.

          9                 And I don't know the answer, but I

         10  would be happy to find out for you if Willets Point

         11  was considered when these 16 zones were established.

         12  If it was, why wasn't it included? And if it wasn't,

         13  do we know why it wasn't, and I'll be happy to come

         14  back to you on that. I don't know.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I would

         16  appreciate that. Because moving forward, as far as,

         17  you know, asking this Council to support any

         18  rezoning, at the same time, you know, there needs to

         19  be consideration that these are property owners,

         20  you're using eminent domain in certain cases; am I

         21  not correct?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: We are trying to do this

         23  in as a private market negotiated basis. That's our

         24  goal.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That's your
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          2  goal. And, so, we don't know if eminent domain is

          3  going to be part of that process, but you haven't

          4  ruled it out. And, so, having said that, you know,

          5  in order to provide an atmosphere where there is

          6  going to be a private market negotiations tactic,

          7  are you also, as an agency, reconsidering the

          8  possibilities of establishing a relocation fund? And

          9  many of the rezonings throughout the City of New

         10  York, being sensitive to the issue that we don't

         11  want to lose companies in the City of New York, and

         12  we want to maintain them in communities where

         13  they're viable employment, providing viable

         14  employment opportunities, is there discussion right

         15  now of creating such a fund for businesses?

         16                 MR. LIEBER: Well, there is now. I'd

         17  certainly be happy to explore that and understand

         18  what the implications of that would be.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And we would

         20  like some further feedback, since now you're

         21  mentioning that now there will be. Just to

         22  understand what that may --

         23                 MR. LIEBER: We'll consider that and

         24  explore that, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Correct.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate it,

          4  and ask just courtesy, Hiram, I have agreed to

          5  20-second statement by Hiram because I'm generous.

          6  Twenty seconds.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Twenty

          8  seconds is the warm-up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, that's it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I will be

         11  very quick. I have many more questions, so I'll be

         12  following up with your office. And Mr. Walsh has

         13  been very active on this issue.

         14                 Provided that everything happens and

         15  you negotiate fairly with property owners and we

         16  don't do eminent domain and we ensure that it's an

         17  MWBE package and retaining for workers, there is one

         18  final issue that I want to make note of, because I

         19  see that there is a lot of members of organized

         20  labor here today in the building trades, and they

         21  have been very supportive of the Administration's

         22  developments throughout the City, and sometimes they

         23  have been missed and not given the jobs, union jobs

         24  or prevailing wage jobs at the very developments

         25  that they supported and that members of this body
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          2  supported. So, as a parting shot, we need to ensure

          3  that whatever development occurs, that there are

          4  prevailing wage and union jobs for those workers and

          5  that they are part of this development also.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We assume that's

          8  going to be part of the RFP.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes, we're

         10  assuming that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just so you know.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay?

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And you should know

         16  that the only reason I didn't bring that up also is

         17  because I think the unions are making that

         18  assumption.

         19                 MR. LIEBER: We think this is a huge

         20  project, a lot of jobs for the contractors and

         21  others.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. Now, we

         23  appreciate your time. We appreciate you being here

         24  for so long. It should be noted that you spent a lot

         25  of time with us, and we appreciate that. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: I'll be happy to

          3  follow-up. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So everybody knows

          5  what's going on now, Borough President Marshall will

          6  be speaking next. And we appreciate her patience and

          7  if you can join us.

          8                 After that we're going to have two

          9  panels for, two against. Helen, the Borough

         10  President, I think she's in favor. The next panel,

         11  so we can be ready, will be former Borough President

         12  Shulman, Spencer Ferdinand, Albert Pennisi, from the

         13  Queens Chamber of Commerce, will be next up.

         14                 After that, in opposition will be Dan

         15  Scully, Michael Gerrard, Dan Feinstein, Gerald

         16  Antonacci and Neil Soni. That will be a panel.

         17                 And so everyone is aware of it, after

         18  Borough President Marshall testifies, it is the

         19  tradition of this Council to, when we have panels to

         20  have two-minute testifiers from the panel. So,

         21  otherwise, just so you know, there's 35 people here,

         22  otherwise we'll be here til 10:00 and you'll be

         23  testifying to no one.

         24                 So, we're going to try to do that.

         25                 Borough President Marshall.
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Thank

          3  you, Madam Chair, and to members of the Committee.

          4  Of course it's a pleasure to be back here in these

          5  Chambers where I spent many years not so long ago

          6  representing the Corona, East Elmhurst and Jackson

          7  Heights and Elmhurst areas.

          8                 As Borough President, I have

          9  continued to look out for these communities, all the

         10  communities of Queens. Which leads me to the subject

         11  of this Committee's hearing - redevelopment of

         12  Willets Point. Historically, and to the present,

         13  mixed in with long-time businesses, including Fodera

         14  Foods, Feinstein Iron Works, Sambucci Brothers,

         15  House of Spices and others, Willets Point has been

         16  utilized for auto-related uses, including storage of

         17  auto parts and tires, and also auto repairs and also

         18  a transfer station.

         19                 All of these businesses have long

         20  suffered the lack of many basic City services,

         21  mainly sewers and paved roads. When I was

         22  representing this area, that was for 19 years, first

         23  in the Assembly and then in the City Council, I met,

         24  in fact we met in Fodera Foods' conference room, and

         25  these businesses have lived through many proposals
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          2  for the areas, development that never, ever

          3  materialized, leaving them in economic limbo. Those

          4  plans would be a big full page in the newspaper and

          5  they were going to do this and they were going to do

          6  that, only to never develop.

          7                 One of the things that any area for

          8  development must have is sewers, and what I

          9  attempted to do, there were many problems that came

         10  up all along about flooding and all of those other

         11  issues and sanitary conditions, before you can build

         12  any structure, you must have a powerful sewer line.

         13  Most of these businesses are dealing without any

         14  sewer, there is no sewer lines going through there.

         15  And I was able to get it into the Environmental Bond

         16  Act for the State of New York, but you know that

         17  Bond Act was turned down by the people of New York.

         18  Of course, we voted pretty heavily here in our City

         19  and certainly in Queens, but that Bond Act was

         20  turned down.

         21                 A sewer line to cover this much

         22  territory was a very, very big expense. We could not

         23  get any City agency, any part of the municipality of

         24  our City to support this, and so it never

         25  materialized. But I have been living in that
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          2  district since 1957 and I've walked, I've driven

          3  past it, I've walked past it, saw people go into the

          4  World's Fair and Shea Stadium, and it's an area that

          5  definitely needs a lot of help.

          6                 Willets Point borders on and is close

          7  to so many Queens resources: the Flushing Bay

          8  waterfront and promenade, near the site of the 1939

          9  and the 1964 World's Fairs, minutes away from New

         10  York City's two major airports, ringed by major

         11  roadways, service by the Long Island Railroad, and

         12  the Number 7 Line, close to the Queens Museum, close

         13  to the Queens Theater in the Park, Hall of Science,

         14  the Open Space of Flushing Meadows Corona Park,

         15  Center Stage of the U.S. Open at the National Tennis

         16  Center, the home of the Mets and soon to be

         17  completed Olympic size swimming pool and ice rink.

         18  Many people attended events at these facilities and

         19  then go home immediately thereafter.

         20                 There has been a long campaign. Right

         21  now, first of all, the first thing that happened

         22  after the World's Fair is that the United Nations

         23  set up their home in the park. Our Queens Museum was

         24  also an old part of the World's Fair, we turned that

         25  into a wonderful, wonderful place of art and so on.
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          2  The Theater in the Park, absolutely fabulous. We

          3  have maintained the Unisphere. The Unisphere is

          4  beautiful, and people use this park very well.

          5                 On any summer day, as long as the sun

          6  is shining there are tons of people in the park.

          7  We've done a lot to try and improve this area. Today

          8  there is a bold new vision for the entire Willets

          9  Point area. I worked on the Flushing Development

         10  Framework Study that identified Willets Point as a

         11  crucial link between Corona, Flushing, Jackson

         12  Heights, Elmhurst and the entire surrounding area,

         13  that should be redeveloped with complimentary uses

         14  in activities that would attract the people who come

         15  to the surrounding facilities and institutions,

         16  along with housing.

         17                 As Chair of the Willets Point

         18  Advisory Committee, I am working with elected

         19  officials, City agencies and community

         20  representatives on implementation of a plan that has

         21  been shaped by the Framework Study, public input and

         22  private responses, to a Request for Expressions of

         23  Interest. These sources have shaped a plan that

         24  includes 1.7 million square feet of retail, dining,

         25  recreation, entertainment, uses geared towards
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          2  patrons of the USTA and also the Met fans, Queens

          3  Theater in the Park, the skating rink and Flushing

          4  Meadows Corona Park itself. Approximately 5,500

          5  units of mixed-income housing, and new green spaces

          6  and a new elementary school are on the drawing

          7  board. The plan also provides a chance to join the

          8  Flushing Bay waterfront to Flushing Meadows Corona

          9  Park, as well as a vital new connections between

         10  Corona and Flushing.

         11                 Another important part of the plan is

         12  a new hotel and multipurpose center for trade shows,

         13  and also that we can use at all these events we

         14  have, we struggle to find places for when they

         15  happen. And also, for conventions and cultural

         16  events. The Queens Chamber of Commerce commissioned

         17  a study that showed that there is an unmet demand

         18  for mid-sized venue in New York City, for a place

         19  where they could hold trade shows. In fact, that has

         20  been clarified to us that is a Citywide need, a more

         21  mid-sized convention center. They include increasing

         22  Long Island Railroad service to Willets Point, and

         23  nearby Main Street station of the Long Island

         24  Railroad, improving highway access to the area, and

         25  expanding the Flushing Bay Promenade.
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          2                 We know and appreciate that there are

          3  Willets Point businesses and workers who for many

          4  years have been part of the Queens economy, and will

          5  need assistance in relocating. EDC and the Office of

          6  Small Business Services have begun discussions with

          7  those who will be affected to discuss relocation

          8  assistance. Nobody has pushed the Administration

          9  more than I have to work with the existing

         10  businesses.

         11                 As we speak, both agencies are

         12  working on specific programs for workforce

         13  development, immigration and other support services.

         14  Looking forward, this plan is expected to create

         15  20,000 new construction jobs, and 6,100 permanent

         16  jobs, creating 1.5 billion economic impact over the

         17  next 30 years.

         18                 It is crucial that the redevelopment

         19  of Willets Point and the growth we expect the area

         20  to experience will support Minority and Women-owned

         21  Businesses and bring jobs to the residents of

         22  Queens. I am happy to announce, therefore, that

         23  working with the Mayor's Office, I will Chair the

         24  Willets Point Minority and Women's Business

         25  Enterprise and Labor Force Participation Advisory
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          2  Committee. We will require a public labor agreement.

          3                 Comprised of local elected officials,

          4  labor leaders dedicated to Minority and Woman-Owned

          5  Businesses, and local business development, we will

          6  set minimum commitments required of the future

          7  developer regarding labor and local business

          8  participation, and we will ensure that those

          9  commitments are met.

         10                 CitiField is rising quickly, and

         11  another U.S. Open is around the corner, public and

         12  private investment has further changed the

         13  surrounding area. We look forward to an

         14  environmentally cleaner future for the area that has

         15  been neglected too long. When we're done, the

         16  overhead television picture, seen by millions around

         17  the world from the Blimp, will be part of the

         18  Willets Point waterfront and surrounding area, along

         19  with other picturesque of New York City miles away.

         20                 Queens is relatively new to the

         21  massive development which has special advantages. We

         22  now know that we can build planned communities, take

         23  advantage of new technologies, we can avoid the

         24  mistakes of the past in building a better future.

         25                 As Chair of the Willets Point
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          2  Advisory Committee comprised of elected officials,

          3  community boards, City agencies, I look forward to

          4  working with everyone. Thank you.

          5                 If you have any questions, I'll be

          6  happy to answer them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If my colleagues

          8  have questions, to really limit it to one question

          9  so we can go on. And Council Member Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 Good afternoon, Madam President.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Hi.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The question I

         15  have now that you Chair this Advisory Committee, one

         16  of the things that has not been done probably in a

         17  long time, and I call it putting the cart before the

         18  horse, is that it has been stated there are going to

         19  be so many permanent jobs at Willets Point, does

         20  your Committee, or does it entertain meeting with

         21  the industries and the businesses that are going to

         22  come there to find out what jobs they have to fill

         23  by the time Willets Point is finished?

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL:

         25  Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So that they

          3  can train for those positions.

          4                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: We

          5  already can anticipate never mind what's going to be

          6  there, but the people who work there now. I have

          7  represented a community, a large immigrant community

          8  for many years. You must not underestimate that

          9  community. There are many people who come, and I

         10  have chaired Sumos Uno (phonetic) in the State

         11  Assembly, people who come to America with real

         12  credentials, doctors, lawyers, et cetera, getting

         13  their credentials straightened out so that they can

         14  practice in America is a complicated process. I know

         15  that there will be some of those people here. They

         16  can easily get into auto repair, things like that,

         17  but there are people there who have real skills.

         18                 There are also people there who have

         19  great talent as far as repairing autos. The United

         20  Automobile Dealers of America have built a school

         21  right there in College Point for people to learn how

         22  to work with cars. Toyota has bought a wing. If

         23  someone enters into that training, they have a job

         24  for life, not only to repair cars, but even to be a

         25  distributor. And we have other such things going on,
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          2  the industry itself, the construction industry

          3  itself is almost finished with a school. They are

          4  training all aspects of the construction trades. We

          5  also have right now a brand new Queens Vocational

          6  High School. This is actually the wing. The wing is

          7  three times bigger than the original school.

          8  Excellent training in all vocations, carpenters,

          9  plumbers and so on.

         10                 We will work very closely with those

         11  people because we've first got to take care of them

         12  so that they can be comfortable so that we can bring

         13  other things in. And we will be working on things

         14  like that, on finding, also helping them to find

         15  jobs, okay? And then for the future, we'll tackle

         16  that next - what kind of industry is going to come

         17  in, what kind of jobs will be available.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Sounds good.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         21  much, Madam Borough President. And thank you for

         22  your patience today, and let me give a welcome to

         23  your Chief of Staff, Alex Rosen, my former boss at

         24  Borough President Shulman's office, and we thank you

         25  for being here.
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: I would

          3  say that we have been working very closely with EDC.

          4  I have projects going on all over the Borough. They

          5  have cut to the chase. This is not a quick thing

          6  that you can do here, but they have definitely

          7  helped us.  I'm doing an installation of the City

          8  University in the Rockaways, they scoped it out for

          9  us and they're very efficient. I find them very

         10  cooperative. When I don't, I yell. Basically I must

         11  say that they've been very cooperative. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         13  much, Madam Borough President.

         14                 And now we have Spencer Ferdinand,

         15  Albert Pennisi and Claire Shulman. And we will put

         16  the two-minute timer on for the rest of the hearing.

         17  And I'm going to say this to those folks that are

         18  waiting here, we are going to have a second hearing.

         19  We're going to do it probably in two months, which

         20  will be months and months before EDC plans on

         21  putting the ULURP through. So, what I am going to

         22  suggest is -- where is Jay? There is going to be a

         23  gentleman sitting right there where it says "press."

         24  If you would like to be calculated as a yes or a no

         25  vote on today's hearing, we will then in the
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          2  September hearing again let you speak. If you speak

          3  today, though, the second hearing is going to be a

          4  continuation of this hearing, so it will be

          5  considered the second round if you spoke again then.

          6                 So, if you would like to be

          7  calculated as a yes or a no today with the

          8  opportunity of still speaking in September, please

          9  see the gentleman that will be sitting there in a

         10  moment. Otherwise, you can speak today but will not

         11  have that opportunity again in September. So, I'm

         12  just putting that out there.

         13                 And we thank you, and, please, Ms.

         14  Shulman.

         15                 MS. SHULMAN: How about that? It's

         16  been a long time.

         17                 First I want to thank the Council for

         18  moving us into this much larger room, that really is

         19  accommodating all of the people that wanted to be

         20  here today. And there are many of them, many labor

         21  union folks are here because they're looking for

         22  work and they support the project, and those folks

         23  that are here who currently reside at Willets Point

         24  are interested in what will happen to them as well.

         25  And, so, this is the essence of democracy, and we're
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          2  delighted that both sides of this issue have come

          3  here today.

          4                 My name is Claire Shulman, I'm

          5  President and CEO of Flushing Willets Point Corona

          6  LDC. We are a joint venture of the private market

          7  and the City and we have been created to advocate

          8  and advance the development of North Queens, that

          9  encompasses Downtown Flushing, Willets Point and

         10  Corona.

         11                 For many years all levels of

         12  government and members of private industry, have

         13  studied Willets Point, and for a very good reason:

         14  Willets Point is strategically located between two

         15  airports, a number of important highways, as well as

         16  access to the Number 7 Train and the Long Island

         17  Railroad.

         18                 It is perhaps one of the best sites

         19  in the City, and if developed will yield many short

         20  and many long-term jobs, as well as to broaden the

         21  tax base.

         22                 The 70-acre site, I've heard so many

         23  different acres, somebody said 60, somebody said 62,

         24  we were carrying it as 70, but I guess we'll have to

         25  measure it more carefully. Whatever, it is a very
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          2  large site, of which about 40 acres are developable,

          3  and those 40 acres can provide and produce much

          4  needed affordable housing, a convention center, a

          5  hotel, a school, parks, and many, many other

          6  amenities. It is adjacent to the new City field and

          7  connects by virtue of the Flushing River, Downtown

          8  Flushing on the one side, and Flushing Meadow Corona

          9  Park on the other.

         10                 Downtown Flushing is an exciting

         11  business district that continues to grow and

         12  prosper, and can easily expand into the Willets

         13  Point area and indeed it should.

         14                 Flushing Meadow Corona Park is an

         15  extraordinary amenity that lends itself very well to

         16  the community. This is an opportunity we face, that

         17  we can connect these valuable assets to each other,

         18  and thereby promote incredible economic development.

         19  For those businesses that are currently located in

         20  this site, we encourage the City and indeed will

         21  support all of its efforts to relocate and to offer

         22  job training. Very, very important.

         23                 What is the highest and best use of

         24  the property at Willets Point? Certainly the plans

         25  that the City is drafting relate directly to the
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          2  best interests of the City. And may I say to all of

          3  you that are here, this is a major project. It is in

          4  the best interest of the Borough and the City. Let

          5  us not lose the momentum of this project. If we do,

          6  we will be sitting here ten years from now talking

          7  about the same project. The momentum has started,

          8  let us keep it going. And I urge everyone to give

          9  this very serious consideration.

         10                 Queens County is a vibrant, exciting,

         11  energetic county with a very diverse population,

         12  whose chemistry has made the Borough probably one of

         13  the best boroughs in the City of New York, and this

         14  project is a really exquisite program to better the

         15  Borough of Queens. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         17  much, Ms. Shulman.

         18                 Please.

         19                 MR. FERDINAND: Good afternoon. My

         20  name is Spencer Ferdinand. I'm the Executive

         21  Director of the Queens Economic Development

         22  Corporation, and Queens Economic Development

         23  Corporation is the official EDC trainer for

         24  businesses in Queens, as well as SBA resource

         25  partner, and funder with the Small Business Services
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          2  Department of the City, and the officially

          3  designated economic development planning agency for

          4  the US EDA. So, we're well prepared to talk about

          5  this issue, and I certainly concur with the former

          6  Borough President, in terms of the importance of the

          7  project going forward at EDC, and similar to the

          8  concerns raised by the City Council, we're concerned

          9  about what's going to happen to the number of people

         10  that are employed there, and the businesses there,

         11  and making sure that when we take a look at the

         12  details, that we have a chance to retrain or replace

         13  a lot of the existing jobs and businesses that are

         14  there, and we think that we're probably imminently

         15  qualified to really take a look at that and help

         16  move that forward.

         17                 The project that's being proposed for

         18  Willets Point is really an excellent potential for

         19  Queens County. Queens County, with it's 110 acres

         20  and 2.2 million population really is a City in and

         21  of itself, and a lot of the resources that it lacks

         22  potentially could be replaced with what is being

         23  proposed at Willets Point. Most specifically the

         24  conference center and the hotel which is being

         25  championed by my colleague from the Queens Chamber,

                                                            126

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  which we supported them on their proposal to do

          3  that.

          4                 So, I'd like to conclude by saying

          5  that we're fully in support of the project, but as

          6  everything else, the devil is in the details, and

          7  we'd like to really make sure that the Council and

          8  all the other members pay attention to what's going

          9  on, as I know that you will.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're trying.

         11                 Hi, Al.

         12                 MR. PENNISI: Good afternoon,

         13  Chairwoman Katz and members of the Economic

         14  Development, Land Use Committees. My name is Albert

         15  Pennisi. I'm the President of the Queens Chamber of

         16  Commerce, and we thank you on behalf of our members

         17  for the opportunity to testify here today.

         18                 Queens Chamber of Commerce number one

         19  priority has been, and always has been, to bring a

         20  conference and a convention center and a major hotel

         21  to Queens County, and the proposed redevelopment of

         22  Willets Point would allow for this vision to become

         23  a reality. Willets Point, with its approximately 62

         24  acres is one of the last pieces of land available

         25  for redevelopment in Queens County, and certainly
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          2  the development will promote economic growth, serve

          3  the market need for what we now believe is going to

          4  be a 400,000 square foot exhibition center and

          5  convention center for Queens County. The current

          6  hotels in Queens County cannot currently provide

          7  this type of facility, and although this convention

          8  center will be smaller than the Javits Convention

          9  Center, the overall plan for Willets Point should

         10  serve the needs of the business community. And what

         11  we're hearing is that hopefully there will be a 1.7

         12  million square feet of retail space in addition to

         13  the convention center and the hotels, and 500,000

         14  square feet of office space, which we certainly need

         15  in Queens County, especially in this particular

         16  location. And ultimately the 5,500 housing units to

         17  house some of the people that work and live in that

         18  community, and more importantly, or as important,

         19  the development of Willets Point is projected to

         20  create 20,000 construction jobs and 6,000 permanent

         21  jobs, and calculations are it should generate over

         22  $5 billion over the next 30 years or the 30 years

         23  after its final development.

         24                 However, we do recognize that this

         25  redevelopment must be pursued with awareness that

                                                            128

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  the businesses that currently operate in this

          3  location must be addressed, and addressed in a

          4  serious manner, as we've heard here today by the

          5  many persons testifying. And we applaud statements

          6  by Mayor Bloomberg, Queens Borough President Helen

          7  Marshall, Claire Shulman and the Council here, and

          8  you members of these committees today, regarding the

          9  creation of a dedicated business relocation and

         10  workforce assistance plan to either purchase the

         11  land and relocate the businesses, retrain the

         12  employees in those businesses and give them

         13  technical assistance to relocate in other areas in

         14  Queens and to do so in a meaningful way.

         15                 The Chamber looks forward to playing

         16  a part in a continued role in this process which we,

         17  the Chamber of Commerce was instrumental in starting

         18  back in 2003, but we will now continued to work with

         19  Claire Shulman and the local business development

         20  corporation in any way we can. And we are pleased

         21  that what we began in the Queens Chamber of Commerce

         22  may ultimately become a reality now that the master

         23  plan has formulated and the request for proposals

         24  include our hotel and conference center concept.

         25                 In closing, on another note, and I
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          2  read the newspapers --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I need you to wrap

          4  up.

          5                 MR. PENNISI: Okay. I'd like to

          6  congratulate the City Council --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

          8                 MR. PENNISI: And the Mayor in the

          9  budget that they passed to lower business taxes for

         10  businesses in New York City and significantly

         11  lowering the real estate taxes. And I know that the

         12  budget will be passed and be signed into law. And

         13  thank you for your time today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Our pleasure. And

         15  we thank you for coming out and for your patience

         16  today, as we went through the testimony.

         17                 Okay, next panel. Thank you. Michael

         18  Gerrard, Arnold Porter, Willets Point Industry

         19  Association, Dan Skully from Tully, Neil Soni from

         20  House of Spices, Gerald Antonacci from Crown

         21  Container, and Dan Feinstein from Feinstein Iron

         22  Workers.

         23                 Neil Soni. We're going to tell who is

         24  in opposition and who is in favor for those that

         25  agreed not to speak, and then we'll come back. But
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          2  in opposition is Neil Soni. Thank you very much,

          3  gentlemen, for your patience as well today. And you

          4  want to start, Dan?

          5                 MR. FEINSTEIN: Madam Chairman, thank

          6  you very much. Council people, Counsel, ladies and

          7  gentlemen, before I read my prepared testimony I

          8  would like to just comment on something that the

          9  previous speaker had said, the representative from

         10  the Queens Chamber of Commerce, he said this is the

         11  last available large piece -- this is not available

         12  land. This is not a site that is available to

         13  develop. This is a site that we own, one of the

         14  owners on the site. I just wanted to make that very

         15  clear for the record, this is not an available piece

         16  of property.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So noted.

         18                 MR. FEINSTEIN: Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You may start

         20  testifying, and those that are leaving, if you have

         21  testimony, you can also hand it in. Okay.

         22                 MR. FEINSTEIN: Ladies and gentlemen,

         23  good afternoon. My name is Dan Feinstein, and I am

         24  the President of Feinstein Iron Works. Feinstein is

         25  a family-owned and operated business located in
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          2  Willets Point, Queens. We have been in the business

          3  of fabricating and erecting structural steel and

          4  miscellaneous metal since 1931.

          5                 I am currently the third generation,

          6  and at this time working at my company are both my

          7  son and daughter, both college students, and they

          8  are prospectively the fourth generation.

          9                 For the past 25 years, the City of

         10  New York has denied our business the basic services

         11  that they are obligated to provide, and services for

         12  which we have paid taxes, well in excess of a

         13  million dollars. We have no roads, we have no

         14  sewers, we have no street lights, we have no snow

         15  removal, we have no enforcement of the basic laws of

         16  the City of New York. Now the City says they want to

         17  throw us out. They want to throw us out of our

         18  businesses and off our land. We have outlived our

         19  usefulness. But how we employ both at our plant and

         20  at many construction sites well over 100 employees,

         21  people have worked for our company for ten, 20 and

         22  25 years. We have fathers and sons working at our

         23  company. We provide structural steel for projects

         24  all throughout the City of New York, we build no

         25  less than ten schools per year. If you're driving on

                                                            132

          1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE COMMITTEES

          2  the Whitestone Expressway and you look at the New

          3  York Times plant, you'll see a large expansion going

          4  on. We're building that. That's us. Right after

          5  9/11, the Office of Emergency Management of the City

          6  of New York contacted us and we had over 25 iron

          7  workers working down at the 9/11 site for quite some

          8  time, securing the adjacent buildings. That was us

          9  as well.

         10                 Several years ago at LaGuardia

         11  Airport, when an airplane ran off the runway and

         12  into the bay, it took out the landing, the

         13  structural landing platforms that guide the planes

         14  into LaGuardia, the FAA called us and came to our

         15  office within one hour, and within 48 hours the

         16  airport was back working. We had totally rebuilt and

         17  reconstructed those platforms. We've been in the

         18  City for over 75 years fabricating structural steel.

         19  We want to stay where we are. We want to grow. And

         20  we ask the City of New York for no help at all. We

         21  ask them for no tax breaks, we ask them for no

         22  development box, and all we want is the basic

         23  services that we are entitled to. We want to be part

         24  of this development. We want to be part of the

         25  rebirth of Willets Point. We do not want to be the
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          2  sacrifice for some billionaire developer to grow

          3  even richer at the expense of three generations of

          4  hard-working New York families.

          5                 The City of New York has been

          6  planning this development for quite some time. They

          7  have commissioned study after study, but yet no

          8  arrangement has been made for us and the other

          9  businesses. Does the City of New York know what we

         10  need, what we want? And the answer is no.

         11                 It is no because only now have they

         12  started to ask us what do we want and what do we

         13  need? How could they know, how could they not know

         14  what it is going to cost, but yet tell everyone just

         15  how profitable this development will be for the

         16  City? This was testified before when the Council

         17  people asked the people from EDC, how much is this

         18  going to cost? They couldn't tell them. Well, if

         19  they can't tell them how much it is going to cost,

         20  how could they tell the City of New York just how

         21  profitable this is going to be? It will be

         22  profitable for someone but we'll be ruined in the

         23  process. We're located in Willets Point for the

         24  exact reason that they want to take it away from us,

         25  this is the best location in the entire City of New
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          2  York. Within 15 minutes, our trucks, our project

          3  managers, our sales people can be in every borough

          4  of the City of New York and Long Island. Move us

          5  out, and we'll go out of business. We'll lose our

          6  ability to service our projects and our customers.

          7  We're not opposed to development, we're in support

          8  of it, but we want to be part of it. Let us grow

          9  with Willets Point. After all, we've been there for

         10  generations and generations. We have lived through

         11  the good times and the bad, but in spite of what the

         12  City has done, and hasn't done, we have flourished.

         13  We have grown and now they want to take it away.

         14                 We support the growth and we support

         15  the development, but we do not support eminent

         16  domain. The City of New York cannot come in and take

         17  our home away, just because someone else wants to

         18  build a bigger one. We have made it clear to the

         19  City that we are not an obstruction to development,

         20  but they must sit down and provide each and every

         21  one of us what we need and what we require to

         22  continue on with our businesses. To this point, they

         23  have not.

         24                 Once again, I urge the distinguished

         25  members of this chamber not to support the use of
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          2  eminent domain to steal our property and our

          3  businesses.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Now I'm being a

          6  little patient on the timing because there are so

          7  many panels that were for it, that I want to give

          8  you the opportunity, but if you can try to stay

          9  within it, that would be great. But I appreciate

         10  your thoughts.

         11                 Identify yourself for the record.

         12                 MR. ANTONACCI: Hi. My name is Gerald

         13  Antonacci, and along with my brother, Dave, we own

         14  Crown Container, Crown Container Transfer Station

         15  and Crown Container Waste Services. We're a full

         16  service waste management company, from hauling to

         17  transfer station to trucking to its final

         18  destination. We have been in business in Willets

         19  Point for 30 years. We started with one truck and

         20  now we have 20. We operate a C and D transfer

         21  station with a New York City and New York State

         22  permit.

         23                 We have struggled 20 hours a day for

         24  seven days a week for 25 years to build our business

         25  where we now have a better life, and now this. This
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          2  is the third or fourth time that I'm hearing the

          3  City wants to take our land, dating back to when I

          4  was a kid. When does it stop? The City neglects us

          5  by not providing us the services that a third-world

          6  country would expect, and then you call us blighted.

          7  It doesn't seem right. They're always threatening us

          8  that our area looks like crap, but we keep paying

          9  all our taxes and we don't get the streets and

         10  sewers we need to develop our area. Instead, you

         11  call us blighted and you take our land and

         12  businesses that our family built for our whole

         13  lives.

         14                 The best way to deal with the land

         15  owners is deal with them fairly, without the threat

         16  of eminent domain hanging over their heads. I urge

         17  you to take eminent domain off the table and deal

         18  with the people fairly, like the other states are

         19  starting to do.

         20                 If this plan goes through, how is the

         21  City going to relocate me? As you know, transfer

         22  station permits are hard to come by. Now you're not

         23  just taking my land, you're taking my business. We

         24  must be relocated, otherwise two of our businesses

         25  will be put out of business and the third one will
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          2  be destroyed. I ask, how is this the American dream?

          3  We've been put through 30 years of neglect and

          4  threats by the City and now they want to kill us. I

          5  ask you how you would feel if this was you? The

          6  answer should be as clear to you as it is to me, no

          7  eminent domain. Deal fairly with the people. It will

          8  save you time and years of court battles. And I ask

          9  you, the saying that Lincoln wrote on that ceiling,

         10  I think it was written for us, not for the big

         11  developers. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If you have a copy

         13  of your statement, we'd like to have it for the

         14  record. Thanks.

         15                 MR. SCULLY: Thank you. I'd just like

         16  to say, and I appreciate the City Council having

         17  this hearing, and obviously from the insightful

         18  questions that you've asked EDC, it's obvious that

         19  there's a lot of work put in on this issue from the

         20  City Council, and we appreciate your efforts.

         21                 My name is Dan Scully. I'm the Vice

         22  President of Tully Environmental. I represent the

         23  Tully companies that are located in Willets Point.

         24                 Tully Construction has been in New

         25  York City business for over 80 years. In that time,
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          2  Tully has become one of the leaders in heavy

          3  construction and one of the fourth prime contractors

          4  that completed the clean-up at the World Trade

          5  Center, and many of the ancillary products after

          6  9/11.

          7                 Tully Construction is a union shop

          8  that employs many varied union trades. We employ 800

          9  to 1,000 union workers at any given time and on many

         10  projects, and the majority of our work is municipal

         11  work and almost all of it is with New York City.

         12                 In addition to its construction

         13  company, Tully has grown to become a significant

         14  part of the solid waste management in New York City.

         15  Tully Environmental owns and operates two full-time

         16  transfer stations that play critical roles in

         17  recycling and managing waste within New York City.

         18                 Every day Tully receives 900 tons of

         19  DOS curbside collection at its transfer station in

         20  Willets Point. At our recycling yard we process over

         21  a million yards of clean fill material every year.

         22  These facilities provide essential services for the

         23  City and cannot be relocated through the site

         24  specific permits that we have at our locations.

         25                 Tully objects to the current rezoning
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          2  and redevelopment that is proposed by the EDC for

          3  several reasons. For over 30 years, Tully and other

          4  area businesses have been asking the City for basic

          5  services that any business should expect from

          6  government, sanitary sewers and paved streets.

          7                 It has long been our contention that

          8  the state of Willets Point is as a result of the

          9  City's neglect of the area, and the local businesses

         10  have done their best to work within the worst

         11  conceivable conditions.

         12                 One reason the City has balked at

         13  providing sewers in the past is the constant desire

         14  to redevelop the area. From Robert Moses in the

         15  sixties to Donald Trump in the eighties, the City

         16  has always had a better idea of what to do with our

         17  property.

         18                 In 1991, after the business

         19  association of Willets Point demanded action, Clair

         20  Shulman requested the EDC conduct a study of Willets

         21  Point. Urbitran Associates was selected to evaluate

         22  the best way to redevelop Willets Point. The study

         23  concluded that the best way to develop Willets was

         24  to provide the sewers and streets that we've been

         25  asking for, due to its valuable location the area
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          2  would develop itself. And the best people to develop

          3  the property were the property owners themselves.

          4  Yet, even after this study was concluded, Claire

          5  Shulman still refused and resisted to provide our

          6  businesses with the sewers, because she had a better

          7  plan.

          8                 Here we are 17 years later. Seventeen

          9  years of property owners at Willets Point could have

         10  had an opportunity to realize the benefits of the

         11  services the City should have been providing all

         12  along, 17 years of positive change that could have

         13  occurred, and, yet, Willets Point still sits in

         14  disrepair. Now the EDC is looking to push our

         15  businesses out of Willets Point and most likely out

         16  of business all together.

         17                 For the past two or three years, EDC

         18  has ignored businesses at Willets Point while it has

         19  proceeded to develop its plans. This rezoning effort

         20  can only be seen as a deliberate attempt to start

         21  the wheels in motion that will eventually lead to

         22  eminent domain. In the meantime, the EDC has

         23  promised to be fair with area businesses and

         24  relocate us all. There are no plans for relocating

         25  our businesses at this time and EDC has only begun
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          2  its surveys.

          3                 Yet, for two years we struggled to

          4  have conversations with EDC about this project. The

          5  silence on EDC's part can only lead us to one

          6  conclusion, there are no plans and eminent domain is

          7  their ultimate plan.

          8                 There is no need to rush this project

          9  ahead or to have an all or nothing view of this

         10  area. The businesses of Willets have long been

         11  proponents of developing the area. We want to see

         12  change and we are willing to work with the City to

         13  accomplish this. The City needs to work with our

         14  businesses, not threaten us with extinction.

         15                 Why can't there be a stepped approach

         16  to development here? Why can't the City give us the

         17  sewers and streets as a first course of action?

         18                 Our Association controls

         19  approximately half of the land in Willets Point.

         20  We're longstanding businesses that have been in

         21  Willets Point for two or three generations. We are

         22  in favor of improving and developing Willets Point

         23  and want to work with the City to achieve these

         24  goals. We do not believe that there have been

         25  adequate studies completed on this project, or that
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          2  the EDC has considered any alternative compromises.

          3                 We oppose the use of eminent domain

          4  as a solution to the existing property owners. We're

          5  opposing the rezoning of Willets Point until the EDC

          6  has proven it has the answers to these questions

          7  that we've been asking.

          8                 Thank you very much for having this

          9  hearing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate your

         11  testimony.

         12                 MR. GERRARD: Madam Chair, my name is

         13  Michael Gerrard. I'm an environmental attorney with

         14  Arnold and Porter. We represent the Willets Point

         15  Industry and Realty Association, which consists of

         16  the ten substantial businesses on this property, the

         17  site, businesses that Mr. Lieber rightly indicated

         18  are very important industries to the economic

         19  functioning of the City.

         20                 Mr. Lieber spoke of the close

         21  collaborative consultative process with stakeholders

         22  that have taken place. It has not taken place with

         23  us. The conversations with our industries just began

         24  very recently.

         25                 We are deeply skeptical that it will
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          2  be possible to relocate these businesses. There are

          3  numerous challenges to relocating them. Almost all

          4  of them require manufactured zone areas with

          5  substantial parcels. There are almost no such large

          6  parcels available in manufactured zones in the City.

          7  Most of these businesses require permits from the

          8  State Department of Environmental Conservation or

          9  from the City or from the federal government,

         10  permits that are difficult, if not impossible to

         11  come by these days. Many of these businesses require

         12  excellent highway access because many of them

         13  involve heavy truck traffic, and you're not going to

         14  want to locate these in residential areas where the

         15  trucks will go through residential neighborhoods.

         16                 There is, however, a way to resolve

         17  the skepticism about the ability to relocate and it

         18  is consistent with Mr. Lieber's statement that the

         19  City hopes to resolve the relocation issues prior to

         20  the beginning of the ULURP process, and that is to

         21  require the Draft Environmental Impact Statement to

         22  specify where these businesses are going to go.

         23                 If the Draft EIS specifies where each

         24  of the businesses will go, and where do the

         25  associated and environmental issues associated
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          2  there, and what are the permitability of those

          3  sites, then there will be a lot less skepticism

          4  about whether it's possible to put them some place.

          5                 At the same time, if they can't be

          6  relocated, or if the City cannot identify a place

          7  for them to go, the Draft EIS should specify how the

          8  plan will incorporate these businesses and allow

          9  them to continue to operate.

         10                 The time when the City will have the

         11  greatest incentive to find alternative relocation

         12  spots for these businesses is prior to ULURP

         13  approval. After ULURP approval then it's clear that

         14  eminent domain is going to be the path that they

         15  will follow.

         16                 They refuse to say whether they will

         17  go with eminent domain. We think that this is the

         18  method that will give you the information that you

         19  need before you make the decision on whether to

         20  approve the project.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         23                 I just have a very quick question

         24  because I want to get on to the other testifiers,

         25  and I know this is going to create ire, but I don't
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          2  mean to do it: when is the first time you met with

          3  the Administration on this?

          4                 MR. GERRARD: Are you referring to EDC

          5  specifically?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

          7                 MR. GERRARD: We had a meeting about

          8  ten days ago with Mr. Lieber and his entire group.

          9  At that meeting he said he was going to begin the

         10  individual meetings with each individual company,

         11  and as far as I understand, the first meeting

         12  occurred today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's the first

         14  time you guys met with EDC?

         15                 MR. GERRARD: This is the first

         16  individual meeting, each company with EDC, yes. We

         17  had been asking for this meeting to take place for

         18  two years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I know, you

         20  mentioned it to me about a year ago.

         21                 MR. GERRARD: Yes. And I believe today

         22  was the first meeting.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. Thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 MR. GERRARD: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right, we have

          3  Kevin Curtin from the New York Hotel Trade Council;

          4  Kyle Bragg from 32BJ, Jack Kittle from DC 9. I am

          5  now, just so everybody knows, since we had the pro

          6  and against had a very liberal amount of time, I'm

          7  now actually going to hold people to the two

          8  minutes, otherwise we will never end. So, please

          9  excuse me if I gavel. And I don't see Jack Kittle up

         10  there; is that because he's no longer here? Okay, he

         11  gave written testimony.

         12                 Gentlemen, please. If you may.

         13                 MR. CURTIN: Thanks. My name is Kevin

         14  Curtin and I'm here with the New York Hotel Trades

         15  Council, representing the 25,000 members of Union

         16  for Hotel Workers in New York City.

         17                 It is important that the Willets

         18  Point Project be built and operated with the

         19  standard of wages and benefits that people in our

         20  City can live on. The City should not support

         21  projects that do not guarantee livable wages for the

         22  people who build and operate them.

         23                 This sentiment often coincides with

         24  the values of workers being represented by labor

         25  unions. In the name of our members, and members of
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          2  the entire labor community, we strongly encourage

          3  that this development be built with and operated

          4  with union labor, ensuring that the people who

          5  construct our City and run our City can afford to

          6  live in our City.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  speak here today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you have written

         10  testimony as well?

         11                 MR. CURTIN: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And you handed it

         13  in?

         14                 MR. CURTIN: I'm going to.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, thank you.

         16                 MR. BRAGG: Good afternoon. My name is

         17  Kyle Bragg and I'm Vice President of Local 32BJ

         18  SEIU. I would like to thank the New York City

         19  Council and Councilwoman Melinda Katz and Council

         20  Member Thomas White for the opportunity to speak

         21  here today.

         22                 Our union represents 85,000 building

         23  service workers in office buildings, residential

         24  buildings, and stadiums throughout New York, New

         25  Jersey, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Delaware,
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          2  Maryland and District of Columbia. Our members are

          3  cleaners, handymen, porters, superintendents, window

          4  cleaners, and security officers. They work hard and

          5  get paid decent wages and benefits.

          6                 Our members live in communities in

          7  which they work. Our members come from every part of

          8  the City and they live in every neighborhood.

          9                 The Willets Point Redevelopment plan

         10  as it stands will provide 1.7 million square feet of

         11  retail and entertainment space, 5,500 units of

         12  mixed-income housing, a 700-room hotel and 400,000

         13  square space convention center and 500,000 square

         14  feet of office space. The development can provide

         15  responsible growth in Flushing and Corona Queens and

         16  create a model for sustainable development and

         17  environmental stewardship. The plan has the

         18  opportunity to provide hundreds of jobs for

         19  community residents in the area and revitalize the

         20  Willets Point area.

         21                 While there is opportunity for

         22  growth, the need for responsible development is

         23  vital. Willets Point is surrounded by a diverse and

         24  immigrant community. Many of our local 32BJ members

         25  reside in Elmhurst, Corona and Flushing. They work,
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          2  live and raise their families in this area. The

          3  success of this project is based on the ability to

          4  ensure that community residents benefit from this

          5  project. Any new developments retail or residential

          6  must have a plan to pay prevailing wages to all

          7  workers that provide services in the Willets Point

          8  community, as well as provide affordable housing

          9  opportunities so that community residents can remain

         10  in the area.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I need you to wrap

         12  it up.

         13                 MR. BRAGG: I'll be very brief.

         14  Training and access to these jobs by the community

         15  is essential in promoting economic stability and

         16  growth.

         17                 The Willets Point development can set

         18  a strong and longstanding example on demanding

         19  responsible development and making work pay. The

         20  development can potentially provide over 400

         21  building service jobs and will spur growth and

         22  prosperity in the area.

         23                 All service workers do an honorable

         24  job and provide an important service. It is

         25  important that their hard work and dedication be
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          2  recognized by providing a living wage that benefits

          3  them and their families. We hope that any plan for

          4  Willets Point reflects this vision. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. And

          6  while I call up the next panel, I'll just make a

          7  comment, if I can, but I'll call up the next panel.

          8                 Andros Charidemou, Joseph Ardizzone,

          9  and Howard Morris.

         10                 The unions understand that we are

         11  making an assumption with the Administration that

         12  any work from this is going to be union, and we will

         13  send the message that we hope that anything after

         14  that, there is also an understanding with

         15  developers.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Absolutely. And

         17  we appreciate it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: While the next

         19  panel comes up, is the next panel here? I just

         20  called them. The next panel is here or no?

         21                 Howard Morris, Andros Charidemou.

         22                 MR. CHARIDEMOU: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Joseph Ardizzone.

         24  All right. You will be marked, my assumption is

         25  going to be, against. Please.
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          2                 MR. CHARIDEMOU: My name is Andros

          3  Charidemou, the owner of Cyprian Truck & Auto Repair

          4  d/b/a Shea Truck & Auto Repair. I came to the United

          5  States with many hopes and dreams and God bless this

          6  country that gave me, and to many, opportunities to

          7  become productive citizens. After 27 years of

          8  working and 15 hours a day filled with sweat and

          9  pain, me and my partner Charalambos Georgiou, and I

         10  became landowners and stabilized our business. I

         11  sent all my three kids into college and I do the

         12  same thing to the other five grandchildren. The City

         13  of New York has now been interfering and violating

         14  my dreams, rights, and freedom for our family. The

         15  City want to take our property and business, our

         16  business only thing to put food on our family's

         17  table, pay our mortgage and bills. The City have

         18  told me many times that my property is too valuable

         19  for you to even own it. In my opinion that is not

         20  fair. The City wants to give our property to the

         21  private development for profitable causes. During

         22  the meetings, the developers showed us a nice video

         23  and beautiful pictures of what they plan to do.

         24  However, they also showed us pictures with garbage

         25  scattered in the streets, potholes and who knows
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          2  what else. This is a big mistake on behalf of the

          3  developers because the streets do not legally belong

          4  to us. The developers should be embarrassed to

          5  represent the City of New York because it is the

          6  City's responsibility to clean the streets and stop

          7  the outsiders to dump garbage inside our

          8  neighborhood. They have a law about illegal dumping

          9  and it is no enforcement. Why? Is it to make us look

         10  so bad?

         11                 We need to know your plan you have

         12  for us now. We have been told about relocating our

         13  business many times. Our location is more important,

         14  we are located in front of Northern Boulevard and we

         15  are five minutes away from our house. We are a

         16  Sunoco franchise and also we repair trucks and cars.

         17                 Attached along with this letter is a

         18  picture of how our property look like in reality. We

         19  have 20,000 square feet, I'm sorry, 20,100 square

         20  feet of property and building. If relocated, what is

         21  the guarantee and who will be to blame if my

         22  property is taken away again?

         23                 We also wanted to bring to your

         24  attention no one came personally to inform us about

         25  this entire development. Also, we have never been
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          2  informed, nor have we received any notices about

          3  today's meeting, June 13, 2007. Thankfully we found

          4  out from our neighbors which have led me to believe

          5  that you don't want me to be here, you just want my

          6  land.

          7                 I promise you, as long as we are

          8  alive and breathing, we are going to fight for our

          9  land, our business and our rights.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. Thank

         12  you very much. You have that testimony copied for us

         13  or no?

         14                 MR. CHARIDEMOU: Yes, I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Oh, great. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 Sir.

         18                 MR. ARDIZZONE: Yes, my name is Joseph

         19  Ardizzone. I'm a resident of Willets Point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Speak into the

         21  microphone, sir.

         22                 MR. ARDIZZONE: Hello. My name is

         23  Joseph Ardizzone. I am a resident of Willets Point

         24  Boulevard. I want everyone to know that what's being

         25  done at this point in time, the position the
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          2  government has taken against us, is more dictorial

          3  than democracy. If we allow this to continue, this

          4  nation is not longer in the democratic position. We

          5  will be in a dictatorial position. No one has the

          6  right to take one's possession. How is this not a

          7  crime?

          8                 I am sadly enough to say that now

          9  that we are speaking, all the people have left,

         10  people that should know our position. I think it's

         11  very wrong, Madam, that they are not here at this

         12  point. Thank you very much. I have a statement all

         13  written out in detail.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Are EDC

         15  representatives here?

         16                 Okay. So, you're going to bring the

         17  messages back to your boss on things that happened

         18  here. Okay, thank you very much for that, sir. Very

         19  much.

         20                 Scott Rogener, JTT Trucking Corp.,

         21  Carol Van Guilder Real Estate Board of New York,

         22  Marcia Bystryn, NYLCV, Tim McGuinness, NYC and

         23  Company, and Charlize Wans, Asian American Housing

         24  for Elderly in Queens.

         25                 I'm not sure you're all in the same
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          2  position, but that's okay. I'm sure you can handle

          3  each other. And there is only two of you there. Did

          4  the other ones leave? Okay, please go ahead, sir.

          5  Identify yourself for the record. Thank you.

          6                 MR. ROGENER: Hi. My name is Scott

          7  Rogener. I am a tenant that will be affected by the

          8  proposed redevelopment plan for the Willets Point

          9  area of Queens.

         10                 It is a shame that the City is taking

         11  this approach to an area that has not seemed to

         12  matter for decades. In fact, the City has shown the

         13  property owners and the tenants that we do not

         14  matter, as this area has not been treated as part of

         15  the City in many ways.

         16                 For one, the tax dollars that are

         17  generated here have not been used to maintain the

         18  infrastructure at all, evidenced by the lack of

         19  sewers and streets. How many other areas of the City

         20  do not have sewers where people occupy and work on a

         21  daily basis, or streets that are passable without

         22  being swallowed by tremendous holes?

         23                 If this area truly mattered to the

         24  City, the elected officials who represent this

         25  district would be provided with the basic City
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          2  services that any taxpaying businesses are provided

          3  in other areas of the City.

          4                 Below are some key examples. Since I

          5  submitted this, I'm going to skip this for the sake

          6  of time. I'm going to go to a couple of areas I

          7  think I want to get on the record.

          8                 Over the years, New York City has

          9  lost many businesses to New Jersey. Here you have a

         10  group of businesses that have been neglected and

         11  mistreated by the City, and yet, these businesses do

         12  not want to leave. In fact, many of these businesses

         13  would be willing to further invest in the area, and

         14  still the City is pushing them out. Does this even

         15  sound a little fair? I would like to know why this

         16  area is different than any other area? It has been

         17  referred to as a blight and neglected area. This to

         18  me is the truest admission that the City has

         19  neglected Willets Point, in spite of the fact that

         20  the vital businesses that have grown their

         21  operations, contributing to the local economy with

         22  jobs, and a robust tax base.

         23                 I, myself, grew up in a business with

         24  my father in Hunts Point. In the late seventies and

         25  eighties, it was referred to as "Fort Apache." That
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          2  is no longer the case. It is a business park now

          3  where you walk the streets and conduct virtually any

          4  kind of business you desire. In fact, the City

          5  invested in this area by placing an industrial hub

          6  in Hunts Point, the new fish market. Now it is

          7  probably one of the most desirable areas in the

          8  State to have a business. I watched and participated

          9  in meetings that were organized by the Hunts Point

         10  overall Economic Development Corporation, where the

         11  City and the occupants addressed many issues in

         12  order to turn it into what Hunts Point is today.

         13                 At these meetings many issues were

         14  addressed such as police presence, fire safety,

         15  animal control, sidewalks and street conditions and

         16  traffic control among other issues. Each month we

         17  would have a Department representative, including

         18  the Borough President, attend and converse on the

         19  overall outlook for our area and how businesses and

         20  community can work together to improve the area. The

         21  Police Department asked us to improve lighting in

         22  front of our businesses, in an effort to assist them

         23  we did. The Fire Department visited our sites and

         24  became familiar with what each location had for

         25  their safety and our well being. The DOT came in and
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          2  we talked of street conditions and traffic flows.

          3                 Okay, you want me to stop --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, I think we

          5  understand that your against the project.

          6                 MR. ROGENER: I'm against the project

          7  and I want to say how at Hunts Point, which was a

          8  similar demographic, autoparts companies, waste

          9  transfer stations, warehouses, they found a way to

         10  maintain, the people who were occupying that area,

         11  while working together with the City. No one was

         12  evicted. My family still owns property in Hunts

         13  Point, and yet, it looks the way it looks today

         14  because of the joint effort that was put together,

         15  not by evicting people, in coming up with a new idea

         16  of what should be there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate it.

         18  And you have very detailed testimony I see here, and

         19  it will become part of the record and part of our

         20  decision-making process as we move forward.

         21                 MR. ROGENER: Okay. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to

         23  acknowledge, before we go on to the next testifier,

         24  in the back of the room here we have essay contest

         25  winners from the Jewish Community Relations Council,
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          2  and we want to welcome them here with us today. And

          3  Michael Miller, of course, who is with us as well,

          4  from the Jewish Community Relations Council. Good

          5  work, guys. Good work.

          6                 MR. WANG: Distinguished members of

          7  the Council, my name is Charlze Wang. I join you in

          8  congratulating the winners from JCRC, my good

          9  friend, Miller, it's good to see you.

         10                 I want on record support the

         11  development of the Willets Point whole area. Remind

         12  you, some 25 years ago I want to then Deputy Borough

         13  President Shulman about Chinese moving into

         14  Flushing, at a point when Flushing was going

         15  downhill, the streets are boarded up and really

         16  people moving out. Look at what happened today in

         17  Flushing. Now we're over-developed, at a point where

         18  just there is no more room. Congested and everywhere

         19  you find the difficulty with an urban development.

         20  So, Willets Point will come not only at a point

         21  where reducing and releasing the congestion and all

         22  the problem that we have in Flushing, but really

         23  come forward. I commend the City with a beautiful

         24  plan of setting aside this part of land to really

         25  make it into a very worthwhile community, a new
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          2  community with all the infrastructure that actually

          3  has been well thought of.

          4                 I just want to again urge that among

          5  the 5,500 units of apartments that are being built,

          6  I would like to see that number set aside for the

          7  elderly, in particular. I think that part has not

          8  been considered and has been overlooked. So, we have

          9  whole, I mean numbers of senior citizens in

         10  Flushing, numbers that doubled in the past few years

         11  and continue to increase, so their needs have to be

         12  addressed in this particular effort.

         13                 I would hope that also those who are

         14  there, I think will work out an amenable kind of

         15  solution to accommodate and to help to relocate so

         16  all the people who are currently there with jobs and

         17  business will certainly be given fair and equitable

         18  consideration so that this result will be a win/win

         19  situation for the City, for the residents and for

         20  all those who are going to be benefitted by this

         21  development. So, on behalf of Asian American Housing

         22  Development in Queens, I wholeheartedly support this

         23  effort.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very much
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          2  for your time. I appreciate both of you coming in.

          3                 John Furlong, Kevin Flynn, Brad

          4  Lander of the Pratt Center for Community

          5  Development, Eduardo Geraldo, and Socorro Tavarez.

          6  Please start. Thank you very much. Any constituent

          7  of Helen Sears can go first.

          8                 MR. GIRALDO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Please.

         10                 MR. GIRALDO: My name is Eduardo

         11  Giraldo, the President of the Queens Hispanic

         12  Chamber of Commerce of Queens. We are in favor of

         13  the project, but we have a few issues that we would

         14  like to address. The first one will be in respect to

         15  the business owners in that area.

         16                 I was involved when La Marcata

         17  (phonetic) in the Bronx were relocating, and we saw

         18  that EDC was helping to relocate and they were going

         19  by market value or whatever prices of the moving

         20  transition was. When you're moving a business,

         21  you've got to consider a lot of factors, that real

         22  estate prices in different areas are different

         23  prices, so if you really want to help the small

         24  business owners in that area, the City Council has

         25  to make sure they're relocated at full expense,
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          2  whatever it costs, because in one area it might cost

          3  one dollar, but when you move in another area it's

          4  going to cost two dollars, and only the business

          5  will be considered new business in the new location,

          6  so it will need a lot of time to readjust to get new

          7  business coming to their flow. So, it's important to

          8  have that in mind.

          9                 The second part that we consider is

         10  that the use of MWBEs, I think the quotas or

         11  percentages we want to use, it has to be in writing.

         12  We don't want to happen what happened with the Mets,

         13  the stadium, which it was promised but not

         14  delivered. If we get percentages in writing of

         15  contracts to minorities, we make sure there is

         16  participation.

         17                 Here in the City of New York we speak

         18  about affordable housing. I don't think it was so

         19  much about affordable housing. We've got to bring

         20  more dollars to our community, so we can keep the

         21  people in our community. We have got to make sure

         22  the people of Queens get a fair share of the job and

         23  the percentages because there are large minorities

         24  in Queens, we get the right percentages of the job.

         25  Thanks.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

          3  much. So, local hiring, actually, that's one of the

          4  first times it came up today. Thank you.

          5                 MR. GIRALDO: Thank you.

          6                 MS. TAVAREZ: Buenas tardes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Buenas tardes.

          8                 MS. TAVAREZ: Mi nombre es Socorro

          9  Tavarez y soy lider en Congregaciones Unidas para

         10  Accion en Queens y somos parte de la Coalicion

         11  Queens Para Viviendas de Bajo Costo. Estoy aqui para

         12  dar testimonio acerca de Willets Point y para

         13  responder a los planes que tiene la Ciudad para el

         14  area.

         15                 Yo tengo mas de 35 anos viviendo en

         16  Corona. Soy una madre soltera con un hijo

         17  incapacitado. Soy 'home attendant' y mi sueldo de

         18  $28,000 no es sufficiente para lo alto que esta la

         19  renta. Casi todo mi ingreso va a la renta y tambien

         20  tengo que pagar para luz, gas, y telefono. Y asi

         21  como yo, hay miles en mi comunidad que estan

         22  sufriendo igual que yo. Mi iglesia y comunidad estan

         23  en Corona. El ingreso pro-medio en Corona es $35,000

         24  y muchas personas ganan menos!

         25                 De veras, mitad de los inquilinos de
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          2  bajos recursos pagan mas de 50% de sus sueldos en la

          3  renta. Tambien, en mi comunidad, cerca de 20% de la

          4  gente viven en apartamentos muy sobrepoblados. Yo

          5  conozco a familias que viven muchas personas en un

          6  apartamento - a veces hay una famila entera en un

          7  cuarto y compartiendo con otras familas, Usualmente,

          8  solo tienen un bano y una cocina en el apartamento.

          9                 La cuidad tiene planes de construir

         10  5.500 viviendas en Willets Point,k pero solo

         11  menciona viviendas para gente de medio ingreso.

         12  JNecesitamos viviendas de bajo costo para los

         13  residentes de bajo recursos!

         14                 Tambien, nuestras escuelas son

         15  severamente sobrepobladas aqui. Pero, vemos que la

         16  cuidad quiere construir UNA escuela de Kinder hasta

         17  octavo grado para 650 ninos. JA la misma vez,

         18  quieren construir un cine con 2.700 asientos! Donde

         19  estan nuestras prioridades? No ayudara a nuestra

         20  comunidad.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to ask if

         22  she can wrap it up, and I have the translation here,

         23  and so, if I might?

         24                 MS. SOCORRO: Sabemos que hay mas de

         25  250 negocios alla en Willets Point. PRIMERO, la
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          2  cuidad tiene que tratar los negocios y empleados con

          3  justicia y respeto. Si va a sacarlos, la cuidad

          4  tiene que protegerlos y tambien proveer beneficios a

          5  la cumunidad.

          6                 Necesitamos:

          7                 - Trato Justo para los Negocios y

          8  Empleados. Proveer remuneracion justa y buenas

          9  opciones de relocalizacion para los negocios.

         10  Ofrecer opciones de trabajos en el nuevo proyecto o

         11  ofrecer entrenamiento y ayuda en encontrar trabajos

         12  en otros lugares. La cuidad debe pagar para el

         13  entrenamiento y la busqueda de trabajos.

         14                 - La mayoria de las viviendas deben

         15  ser de bajo costo para residentes en los vecindarios

         16  vecinos. Requerir que la mayoria de las viviendas en

         17  el Area de renovacion Urana en Willets Point son

         18  ofrecidas en un precio que puede pagar la gente que

         19  ganan en ingreso pro medio de Queens on menos.

         20                 - Garantizar trajabjos con buenos

         21  sueldos y dar empleos a la gente local para todos

         22  los trabajos neuvos en el proyecto (construccion,

         23  servicio en los edificios, turismo, centro de

         24  convencion, ofcina, sub-contratistas).

         25                 - REspeto y conexion con los
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          2  vecindarios vecinos. Asegurar que el nuevo Willets

          3  point no dana a negocios en downtown Flushing.

          4  Mejorar conexiones entre Corona, Elmhurst, Flushing,

          5  Willets Piont, y el Rio Flushing. Asegurar que el

          6  plan esta informado por el caracter de los

          7  vecindarios alrededor.

          8                 - Proveer la infraestructura fisica y

          9  social necesario. Asegurar que la reconstruccion

         10  viene con escuelas, cuidaninos, centros de viejitos

         11  y centros comunitarios, drejane, transporte, y

         12  estacionamiento para alcanzar las necesidades que

         13  existen y que tal vez necesitamos en el futuro.

         14  Necesitamos mas de una escuela con 650 asientos.

         15                 Gracias por su tiempo esta tarde.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Gracias. Gracias.

         17                 If I might, I'm just going to

         18  translate the points here. Ms. Tavarez is testifying

         19  she is a mother of a disabled son, and her church

         20  and her community are in Corona. The City plans to

         21  construct 5,000 units and she is making suggestions

         22  on what should be done as well.

         23                 One is to do right by the existing

         24  businesses and the co-workers, make most out of the

         25  housing that's affordable, guarantee living wages
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          2  for jobs with targeted local hiring, we love that.

          3  Respect and connect surrounding neighborhoods, and

          4  to provide the necessary physical and social

          5  infrastructure, including schools and buses and

          6  transportation and parking.

          7                 Thank you very much. Gracias. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 MS. SOCORRO: Gracias.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: For the record,

         11  very quickly. In favor, folks that did not testify

         12  that showed up and wanted to speak: Stanley Mark is

         13  in favor. These are all in favor. Tom McCann of

         14  Jackson Heights. Chris Miller of the Mason

         15  Tenderers. Rubin Pena of the Corona Business Corp.

         16  William Riley of Local 3. Peter Koo, the Flushing

         17  Chinese Business, and REBNY, Carol Van Guilder.

         18  Concerned is NYIRN.

         19                 Against is Robert Viala, Neil Soni.

         20  Howard Morris of Feinstein. Francisco Hermeda, from

         21  Willets Point Boulevard. Asian Americans for

         22  Equality, Maria Bottino. Center for Community

         23  Planning is Rebecca Ferguson. Anthony Fodera, is

         24  Fodera Foods. Scott Rogena from JJ Trucking. Thomas

         25  Amenia, Sr., and Thomas Amenia, Jr.
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          2                 I want to thank everyone for their

          3  patience. I would like to especially note my

          4  colleague Helen Sears stayed for the entire hearing.

          5  And of course our Borough President, Borough

          6  President Marshall, who really shows a very deep

          7  interest in all sides of the issue by being here,

          8  and our former Borough President Claire, for being

          9  here Shulman. But we want to thank everyone else

         10  that is here. Clearly, there is a deep interest in

         11  this issue. We will have another hearing on this,

         12  where the folks that were not able to testify will

         13  get that opportunity. So, we are going to recess

         14  this hearing. We will continue the hearing, but we

         15  will adjourn this meeting. Thank you.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 5:30 p.m.)
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